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MEHRA GOEL
X CO.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of REC Power Development and
Consultancy Limited (“the Company”) (A wholly owned subsidiary of REC Limited), which
comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the statement of Profit and Loss, including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
Standalone Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standalan= financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 as
amended (“the act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™)
specified under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, its profit including other ~-aprehensive income, its cash flows and the chang=s “=:
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Other Matters
The Standalone financial statements of the company for the year ended March 31, 2023 were audited
by A. K. Batra & Associates whose report dated May 16, 2023 expressed an unmodifi
those financial statements.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the
key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

S.no

Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s Response

1.

Valuation of account Receivable in view
of risk of

credit loss (refer to Note No. 43 “Financial
Instruments” and note no. 11 ‘“Trade
Receivable™)

Account receivables is a significant item in
the Company's financial statements as at
March 31, 2024 and assumptions used for
estimating the credit toss on receivables is
an area which is influenced by
managerent's judgment.

The Company makes an assessment, of the
estimated credit losses basis credit risk,
project  cte*us, past  history, latest
discussion/correspondence with the
customer.

Given the relative significance of these
receivables to the Financial Statements and
the nature and extent of audit procedures
involved to assess the recoverability of
receivables, we determined this to be a key
audit matter.

Principal Audit Procedures

Our audit incorporated the following
procedure with regards to provisioning of
receivables:

o Understood and evaluated the accounting
policy of the company.

e We evaluated the design and tested the
operating effectiveness of key controls in
relation to determination of estimated credit
loss.

¢ Inquired with senior management regarding
status of collectability of the receivable.

e For material balances, the basis of provision
was discussed with the management.

e Assessed and challenged the information
used by the Management to determine the
expected credit losses by considering credit
risk of the customer, cash collection,
performance against historical trends and the
level of credit loss charges over time.

Accuracy of recognition measurement,
presentation and disclosures of revenues
and other related balances in view of
adoption of Ind AS 115 "Revenue from
Contracts with Customers"

The application of the new revenue
accounting standard involves certain key
judgments relating to identification of
distinct performance obligations,
determination of transaction price of the
identified performance obligations, the

Principal Audit Procedures

We assessed the Company's process to identify
the impact of adoption of the new revenue
accounting standard.

We carried out the folowing procedures:

e Understand the design of internal controls
relating to implementation of the new
revenue accounting standard.

E e i
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appropriateness of the basis used to measure
revenue recognized over a period.

Refer Notes 3.2 and 38 to the Financial
Statement.

contracts, and tested the operating
effectiveness of the internal control, relating
to identification of the distinct performance
obligations and determination of transaction
price. We carried out a combination of
procedures involving  enquiry  and
observation, re-performance and inspection
of evidence in respect of operation of these
controls.

Regarding the stage of completion and
revenue in respect of ongoing projects, we
have relied upon the reports of the Technical
Experts of the Company as we did not have
that technical expertise with us.

Selected a sample of continuing and new
contracts and performed the following
procedures:

Read, analyzed and identified the distinct
performance obligations in these contracts.
Compared this performance obligation with
that identified and recorded by the Company.
Considered the terms of the contracts to
determine the transaction price including any
variable  consideration to verify the
transaction price used to compute revenue
and to test the basis of estimation of the
variable consideration.

Calculations in respect of unearned revenue
were test-checked signed reports provided by
project experts with respect to the percentage
of work completed.

In respect of samples relating to fixed price
contracts, progress towards satisfaction of
performance obligation used to compute
recorded revenue was verified with the terms
of contracts and status of work provided by
the project experts of the company.

Sample of revenues disaggregated by type
and service offerings was tested with the
performance obligations specified in the
underlying contracts.

Performed  analytical procedures  for
reasonableness of revenues disclosed by type
and serving offering




Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, but does not
include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report the fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance, including other Comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind As) specified under section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone
Financial Statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a gua;?mge
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audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users taken on
the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) Planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit,




We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we
give in the “Annexure A”; a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

2. The Comptroller and Auditor General of India has issued directions indicating the areas to be
examined in terms of sub section (5) of section 143 of the companies Act 2013, the compliance if
which is set out in “Annexure B”.

3. (A)

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

®

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Statement of other
comprehensive income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind-AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act;

Vide Notification No. G.S.R. 463 (E) dated 5 June, 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, Government Companies have been exempted from applicability of the provisions of
Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statement of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “Annexure -C” to this report;

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:




(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2024 in its
financial position in its Standalone Financial Statements -Refer Note 46 to the Standalone
Financial Statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company;

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as

(ii)

disclosed in notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall:

e directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
o provide any guarantee, security or the like or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall:

o directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
o provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(iii) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the

(e)

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

As state in the Standalone financial statements

(a) The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the Company
during the year is in accordance with section 123 of the Companies Act 2013, as
applicable.

(b) The Board of Director of the Company has proposed final dividend for the year, which is
subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meetmg The
Amount of dividend proposed is in accordance with Section 123 of the Co Act
2013, as applicable.




(C) With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the
Act:

The provisions of Section 197 is not applicable to Government Company.

(D) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account
using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is
applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023 but company has enabled the audit trail
feature with effect from 30™ October, 2023.

For MEHRA GOEL & CO.
‘Chartered Accountants
FRN: - 000517N

Date: April 19, 2024 Vaibhav Jain
Place: New Delhi Partner

M. No. 515700

UDIN: 24 SIS0 0 B K BX\Yfs) 2,0



Annexure — “A” to Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and
the books of accounts and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

(i) Property, Plant & Equipment

il

iii.

(a)

(a)

(b)

(©)
(d)

e

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Property Plant and Equipment & Intangible assets.

Property, plant and equipment are physically verified by the management according to a
phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of three years which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the programme, Property, plant and equipment has been physically verified by the
management during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The company does not have any immovable property.

The Company has not revalued its Property, plant and equipment or Intangible assets or both
during the year.

No proceedings has been initiated during the year or are pending against the company as at
reporting date for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made there under.

Inventory

(a)
(b)

The Company being a consultancy provider does not has any inventory during the year.
No working capital limit has been sanctioned to the company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
records of the company, the company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any
secured loan or secured advances in the nature of loans, to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or any other parties during the year.

The company has made investments in, granted unsecured loans and advances in the nature of
loans to companies and other parties in respect of which the requisite information are as below:

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the company has provided loans to subsidiaries/others as below:




(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulal arantees | Investments Security

Aggregate amount granted/provided during

the year
Subsidiaries - 75.00 -
Others 45.71 - 7.98

Balance outstanding (gross) as at balance

sheet date in respect of the above cases - - -
Subsidiaries - 90.00 -
Others 1,521.27 - 11.13

(b) In respect of the aforesaid investments, guarantees, securities and loans, the terms and
conditions under which such investments were made, guarantees provided, securities provided
and loans were granted are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(¢) No loan is outstanding as on the balance sheet date.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information given to us, no loan is outstanding as on the
balance sheet date. Accordingly, there is no overdue amount in respect of loans granted.

(¢) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
given any loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year,
has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans
given to the same parties.

(f)  According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records, the Company has not granted any loan during the year which is repayable on
demand or without specifying the terms or period of repayment.

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the company has
complied with the provision of section of 185 and 186 of Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans
and investment made, and guarantees and securities provided by it, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts deemed to be deposits from the public
covered under section 73 or any other provisions of the Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to maintain cost records which have been specified by the Central
Government under sub section (1) of section 148 of companies act, 2013.




vii.

viii.

ix.

(a)

(b)

(©)
(d)
(e)

®

(a)

(b)

a. In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,

including Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ state insurance, Sales tax, VAT,
Income-tax, duty of customs, Cess and any other statutory dues applicable to it with the
appropriate authorities.
There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of GST, Provident fund, Employees’ state
insurance, Sales tax, VAT, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and any other statutory dues in
arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

b. There were no dues in respect of GST, Provident fund, Employees’ state insurance, Income-tax,
Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, VAT, Wealth tax, Cess as at 31 March, 2024 that have not
been deposited on account of any dispute except Income Tax demand u/s 143(3) for A.Y. 2017-
18 of Rs, 29.86 lakh for which appeal has been filed before CIT (Appeals).

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded income in
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the

year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
records of the company, we report that:

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of any loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon at any time during the year.

The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or government authority.

The Company does not have any term loan during the year.
No funds that have been raised on short-term basis by the Company for long-term purposes.

The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013.
The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer

including debt instruments and term loans during the year.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year.
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Xi.

(a) During the course of examination of books to and record of the Company, carried out in
accordance with generally accepted auditing practice in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the
course of our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 was required to be filed with Central Government by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle blower complaints have
been received by the Company during the year (and up to the date of this report).

xii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii. In our opinion and According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and details of the related
party transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the
applicable Indian accounting standards.

Xiv.
(2) In our opinion, the company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size
and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under
audit.

xv. In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013
are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. The company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, clauses 3(xvi)(a) to 3(xvi)(d) of the Order are not applicable. '

xvii. According to the information and explanations given to us, The Company has not incurred any cash
losses in current financial year or in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly this clause is
not applicable.




XiX.

XX

xxi.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as
on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

a. The Company did not have any unspent amount in respect of other than ongoing project under
sub section (5) of section 135 of the Act.

b. The Company has spent all the funds during the year pursuant to ongoing project and
accordingly, no unspent amount available under section 135 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, reporting under clause
3(xxi) of the order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone Financial Statements.

For MEHRA GOEL & CQO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: - 000517N

Date: April 19, 2024 Vaibhav Jain
Place: New Delhi Partner
M. No. 515700 -

UDIN: 2M S\ SHo 0Bk a@xy F 9220



Annexure - “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Annexure referred to in paragraph 2 under the heading 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' section of our report of even date to the members of REC Power Development and
Consultancy Limited on the financial statements for the financial year ended on 31st March 2024.

1\?('). Directions Our Report
Whether the company has system in place | According to the information and explanations
to process all the accounting transaction given to us and on the basis of our examination
through IT system? If yes, the implications | of the records of the company, the company has
of processing transactions outside IT system | Proper system in place to process all the
1. accounting transactions through IT system (Tally

on the integrity of the accounts along with
the financial implications, if any, may be
stated.

Prime Edit Log Gold). There is no implication
on integrity of accounts for processing of
transactions outside IT system, if any.

Whether there is any restructuring of an
existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of
debts/loan/ inteiest etc. made by a iender to
the company due to the company’s inability
to repay the loan? If yes, the financial
2. | impact may be stated. Whether such cases
are properly accounted for? (In case, lender
is a government company, then this
direction is also applicable for statutory
auditor of lender Company).

According to information and explanations given
to us, there are no cases of restructuring/ waiver/
write off debts/ loans/ interest made by a lender
to the company due to company’s inability to
repay the loan during the year.

Whether funds  (grants/subsidy  etc.)
received/receivable for specific schemes
from Central/State Government or its
3. | agencies were properly accounted for/
utilized as per its term and conditions? List
the cases of deviation.

According to the information and explanations
given to us, the funds received for specific
schemes from central/ state agencies has been
properly accounted for/ utilized by the company.
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Compliance Certificate

We have conducted the audit of annual accounts of REC Power Development and Consultancy
Limited for the year ended March 31, 2024 in accordance with the directions/sub-directions
issued by the C&AG of the India under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and certify that
we have complied with all the Directions/Sub-directions issued to us.

Date: April 19, 2024
Place: New Delhi

508, Chiranjiv Tower.
43, Nehru Place,
New Delhi 110019. India

Tel: +91-11-2622-3712,

2622-6933

Gurgaon:

101, Global Business Square,

Building No. 32, Sector 44,
Institutional Area,
Gurugram 122003,

Ph: +91.124.4786200

Mumbai:

305-306, 3rd Floor,

Garnet Palladium, Off Western
Exp Highway, Goregaon
(East), Mumbai ~ 4000863

T: +81-93230-12655

Ph: +31.20.24260504

For MEHRA GOEL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: - 000517N

Vaibhav Jain
Partner
M. No. 515700

UDIN: 2451 5300 B3k BxY F 8230

Pune: Chandigarh: Dubai:

flat No 03, Plot N 28, SCO-705, R-3035, Reef Tower,
Gowardhan Housing 1st Floor, NAC Manimajra | Cluster 0,
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Annexure - “C” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements of
REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2024 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to Standalone Financial Statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls with reference to Standalone financial statements based on the criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities irclude the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safegnarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to the Standalone Financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to Standalone financial statements was established and maintained and whether such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements included
obtammg an undel standing of internal ﬁnanc1al controls, assessmg the risk that a materlal weakness




the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to Standalone
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to Standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to Standalone
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that:

1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receints and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

3) provide reasonable assurarce regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of e company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Intermal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

For MEHRA GOEL & CO.

Chartered Accountants

FRN: - 000517N

Date: April 19, 2024 Vaibhav Jain
Place: New Delhi Partner
M. No. 515700

UDIN: LY S)SF00 B BXYF£R 230



REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited

(Forrmetly RIEC Power Distribution Company Lirnited)

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2024

{All amounts 1 ¥ Jakh, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars Notes 45 3¢ [ parat
31 Marxch, 2024 31 Macch, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 76.85 26.37
Other intangible assets 5 - 0.88
Financial assets
Tnvestments 6 7,671.41 7,671.41
Other financial assets 7 2,300.87 7.085.71
Income tax assets (net) 8 653.97 1,011.46
Defetred tax assets (net) 9 1,55?).()4 3,057.10
Orther non current assets 10 - 2.81
Total non current assets 12,253.14 18,855.74
Current assets
Financial assets
'rade recervables 11 15,497.85 11,443.07
Cash and cash equivalents 12 21,649.89 969.87
Other bank balances 13 22,430.01 32,770.21
Other financal assers 14 2,992.10 3,100.55
Current tax asscts (Net) 15 865.55 -
Other current assets 16 2,855.61 478.78
Total carrent assets 66,291.01 48,762.48
Assets classified as held for sale 17 2,015.08 i 431.47
TOTAL ASSETS 80,559.23 68,049.69
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Eiquity share capital 18 8.55 8.55
Other equity 19 56,708.70 44,084.83
Total equity 56,717.25 44,093.38
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 20 34.50 25.26
Total non-current labilities 34.50 25.26
Current liabilities
Fiancial labilities
Trade payables 21
(ayTotal outstanding ducs of micro & small
enterprises
(b_) Total outsmnqmg (.:lucs of Cteditors other than 9.051.31 416759
micro & small enterprises
Other financia) liabilitics 22 8,418.37 15,804.93
Other current liabilities 23 6,295.40 2,848.73
Provisions 24 42.40 43.09
Cuzrent tax liabilities (net) 25 - 1,064.92
Total current liabilities 23,807.48 23,929.26
Taabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for
sale ' 17 - 179
Total liabilities 23,841.98 23,956.31
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 80,559.23 68,049.69

Summary of material accounting policies 1 to 3

The accompanying notes from 4 to 50 are integral part of the financial statements.

These are the financial statements referred to i our report of even date.

For Mehra Goel & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. (

For and on behalf of Board of DigeMors of
Power Development and Consulfnidy 1%

i {
i o
Wﬁ él\ B % e ocosiy o Ni[rw/:E/
ew Dot .
CA Vaibhav Jain {28 % A anjhy-Kuar V K Singh
Partner " ol g Director Director

A

Date: APY.\.‘ lS,‘LOl‘-I
Place : NPLA Dﬂh{

DIN - 08722752 DIN - 02772733




REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited

(Formerly REC Power Distribution Company Limited)

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 Match, 2024

(All amounts in ¥ lakh, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended

5 For the year ended

Particula Note . :

T e 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Reveaue from operations 26 35,782.02 28,484.41
Other income 27 3,281.50 2,242.55
Total Income 39,063.52 30,726.96
Expenses
Cost of services rendered 28 "7718,644.69 7,242.92
Employee benefits expense 29 580.34 646.31
Finance costs 30 218.08 17.93
Depreciation and amortization expense 31 26.59 '16.62
Impairment on financial assets 32 (2,118.50) 2,725.61
Corporate social responsibility expenses 33 191.90 126.16
Other expenses 34 1,259.53 1,313.57
Impairment on assets classified as held for sale 35 (8.91) 2.56
Total expenses 18,793.72 12,091.68
Profit/ (Loss) before tax 20,269.80 18,635.28
Tax expense 36
Current tax 3,610.48 5,191.83
Deferred tax expense/ (credit) 1,507.06 (519.54)
Eatlier year taxes/(credit) - 188.26 (15.91)
Total tax expenses 5,305.80 4,656.38
Net profit/(loss) for the year 14,964.00 13,978.90
Other comprehensive loss
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans - -
Income tax relating to these itemns - -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 14,964.00 13,978.90
Earnings per equity share
Basic/diluted earnings per share (In %) 37 17,501.75 16,349.60

Summary of material accounting policies 1 to 3

The accompanying notes from 4 to 50 are integral part of the financial statements.

These are the financial statements referred to in our report of

even date.

For Mehra Goel & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000512

& FRE GOOBITH
New Dreild

[/ o Gran/y

CA Vaibhav Jain
Partner
Membership No. 515700

Date: Apni 14, 202V
Place : pyeL DC“'\‘\

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited

.
r'd

V K Singh
Director
DIN - 02772733

Jirector
DIN - 08722752



REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited

Power Developmant

(Formerly REC Power Distribution Company Limited)

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March, 2024

(Al amounts in T lakh, unless stated otherwise)

Patticulies For the yeuar cn@cd For the year e.ri'.dcd
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit / (Loss) before tax 20,269.80 18,635.28
Adjustments for:
Add/(Less)
Depreciation and amortization expense 26.59 _le.62
Impatrment on financial assets (2,118.50) 2,725.61
Impairment on assets classified as held for sale (8.91) 2.56
Interest expense on other financial liabilities measuted at amortized cost 11.49 17.93
Loss on sale/write off of property, plant and equipment ’ 1.71 0.80
Liabilities/Provisions written back (220.91) (156.62)
[aterest income on fixed deposit (1,629.04) (722.72)
Interest income on tax free bonds (610.60) (607.82)
Interest income from SPVs (70.80) (56.96)
Interest income on NCDs - (49.92)
Interest income on staggered papers - (7.4
Interest income on other financial assets measured at amortized cost 9.50) (16.20)
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.36) 0.04)
Operating profit before working capital changes 15,640.91 19,781.11
Changes in working capital:
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in aperating assets:
Trade receivables (current)’ (1,936.28) (4,104.05)
Other financial assets (current) 108.45 (386.77)
Other bank balances (excluding term deposits with maturity
more than 3 months but less th%m 12 mol:r)lths) ’ 9.049.81 (3,700.07)
Other current assets (2,376.83) 1,792.26
Other non-current assets 2.81 (2.81)
Adjustments for increase/ (decrease) in operating labilities:
Trade payables 5,099.84 519.77
Other financial liabilities (current) (7,393.31) 1,565.28
Other financial liabilities (non current) - (149.38)
Other current liabilities 3,456.17 2,114.94
Provisions (current) 0.64) 5.92
Provisions (non cutrent) 9.24 (12.75)
Liabilities held for sale (1.79 0.74
Movement in operating assets and liabilities 6,017.47 (2,356.92)
Cash generated from operations 21,658.38 17,424.19
Less: Tax Expenses (5,371.72) (3,936.12)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 16,286.66 13,488.07




& e REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited
Potean Devalogrmsnt (Formerly REC Power Distribution Company Limited)

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March, 2024

(All amounts in T lakh, unless stated otherwisc)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including capital work-in-progress) (82.04) (5.11)
Sale/Write Off of property, plant and equiprent 4.50 0.39
Sale/Write Off of intangible assets - 0.26
Deposits with bank (maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months) 1,290.39 (13,205.67)
Deposit with Bank having original maturity period more than 12 Months 4,784.84 (585.32)
Interest received on fixed deposit 1,629.04 722.72
Interest received from SPV o 70.86 56.96
Interest received on tax free bonds 610.60 607.82
Interest ncome on NCDs - 49.92
Interest income on staggered papers : - 741
Sale/(Purchase) of investments - 1,200.00
Sale/ (investment) of/in shares of subsidiary companies (net) (1,574.70) (82.05)
Net cash (used in)/flow from investing activities (B) 6,733.49 (11,232.67)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid (2,340.13) (2,744.56)

Net cash used in financing activities (C) (2,340.13) (2,744.56)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 20,680.02 (489.16)

Manpower Cost allocated to NFMS

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year - 969.87 1,459.03

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear  ° 21,649.89 969.87
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement 20,680.02 (489.16)

Explanatory notes -
) Cash and Cash equivalents consists of Cash in hand, cheques/dzafts in hands and Bank Balances including Short Term Deposits with

original maturity of less than three months. The details of Cash and Cash equivalents are as under :-
As at 31 Mazch, 2024 As at 31 March, 2023
Balance held with schedule bank
-in current account 2,141.25 969.87
-in deposit account 19,508.04 - e

b) Amount of expenditure incurred in cash on Corporate Social Responsibility during the year
As at 31 March, 2024 As at 31 March, 2023
- on construction/acquisition of assets - -
- on purpose other than above ' 210.46 117.70

Summary of material accounting policies 110 3
The accompanying notes from 4 to 50 are integral part of the financial statements.
These are the financial statements referred to in our report of even date.

Tior and on behalf of Board of Directors of
REC Power Development and Consudtagcy Limited

X

For Mehra Goel & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0005,

{/ ou ()

* FrR BOOR 8
t 512
New Doy | F

CA Vaibhav Jain 5 p K Singh
Partner ) ’?r@d Accoﬂ‘q&‘\ t Director ] Director
Membership No. 515700 DIN - 08722752 DIN - 02772733

Date: AP‘Y‘:’ ‘97‘101“
Place: New Delbi



REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited
(Formerly REC Power Disttibution Company Limited)

Standalone Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March, 2024

(All amounts in T lakh, unless stated otherwise)
-~ A Equity share capital

Particular Amount
Balance as at 1 April, 2023 8.55
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31 March, 2024 8.55
Balance as at 1 April, 2022 8.55
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31 March, 2023 8.55
Other equity
31 March, 2024
Particulars ] _ ]
General reserve | Retained earnings | Capital reserve Total
Balance as at 1 April, 2023 5,313.55 38,769.83 1.45 44,084.83
Profit/(Loss) for the year - 14,964.00 - 14,964.00
Dividend
- Final dividend for the previous vear (2022-23) - +(2,340:13) - (2,340.13)
- Interim dividend for the year - - - -
Balance as at 31 March, 2024 5,313.55 51,393.70 1.45 56,708.70
31 Matrch, 2023
Pasticul
g A Genetal reserve | Retained earntngs | Capital reserve Total
Balance as at 1 April, 2022 5,313.55 27,535.49 1.45 32,850.49
Profit/(Loss) for the year = 13,978.90 - 13,978.90
Dividend
- Final dividend for the previous vear (2021-22) - (890.91) - (890.91)
- Interim dividend for the year (2022-23) - (1,853.65) - (1,853.65)
Balance as at 31 March, 2023 5,313.55 38,769.83 1.45 44,084.83

Summary of material accounting policies 1to 3
The accompanying notes from 4 to 50 are integral part of the financial statements.

These ate the financial statetnents referted to in out teport of even date.

For Mehra Goel & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited

~
ot G N LN
. St/ SN
///’ 4
CA Vaibhav Jain __5 umar V K Singh
Partner Director Director

Membership No. 515700 DIN - 08722752 DIN - 02772733

Date: AP'Y‘\ 19, 204
Place : pewd el



REC Power Development & Consultancy Limited

Summaty of standalone material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the
year ended 31 March, 2024

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

REC Power Distribution Company Limited (“the Company”/“RECPDCL”) having CIN
U40101DL2007GOI165779 was incorporated in the year 2007, with the main objective to
engage in the engineering consultancy services, execution of work in the area of
decentralized distributed generation (DDG), transmission, Distribution, Generation and Smart
Grid etc. in India or abroad or other related activities for Government and other agencies in
power sector in India. The Company is domiciled in India and is limited by shares, having
its registered office at Cote-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Dethi-110003, India
and principal place of business at REC World Head Quarter, D- Block, Sector-29,
Gurugram-122001. The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of REC Limited (formerly
Rural Electrification Cotporation Limited)(“REC”).

The Company is engaged:

()  in engineering consultancy services involving DPR preparation, project monitoring,

project implementation, handholding etc. to different power sector utilities for their

projects not coveted under Govt. of India schemes.

(i) in carrying out the third party inspection (TPI), quality monitoring and supetvision

under Rajiv Gandhi Grameen Vidyutikaran YojanaRGGVY)/ Deendayal Upadhyaya
Gram Jyoti Yojana(DDUG]JY)/Saubhagya Schemes.

(ifi) in preparation of detailed project report (DPR), project management consultancy

(PMC) and project management agency (PMA) under the Deendayal Upadhyaya Gram
Jyoti Yojana (DDUG]Y), Integrated Power Development Scheme (IPDS) Schemes and
Revamped Distribution Sector Scheme (RDSS).

(iv) in execution of works of Information Technology (IT) implementation and installation

of IT Infrastructure under R-APDRP Part A Schemes, project management agency
(PMA) / project implementation agency (PIA) for implementation of vatious
Government of India Projects viz. Prime Minister's Development Package (PMPD),
Power System Development Fund (PSDF)(Urja Mitra, Rural Feeder Monitoting
Scheme (RFMS), National Feeder Monitoring Scheme (NFMS) and Implementation of
Smart Metering Project under RDSS.

(v)  as project management agency (PMA) for turnkey execution of smart grid project under

NSGM of Government of India, execution of solar standalone /roof top power plants

at various locations actoss the country.




REC Power Development & Consultancy Limited
Summary of standalone material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the

year ended 31 March, 2024

(vi) Bid Process Coordinator (BPC) under Scheme for flexibility in Generation and Scheduling of
Thermal / Hydro Power Stations through bundling with Renewable Enetgy and Storage Power,
2022. '

(vii) Bid Process Coordinator (BPC) for Inter State Transmission Systems and Intra State
Transmission Systems on Tariff Based Competitive Mode. Company is conducting the
bidding process for these projects statting from incosporation, survey, cost estimation
of Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) and selection of qualified bidders to handing over of
the SPV to the lowest bidder.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

‘The Company prepated its Standaione Financial Statements in accordance with the
requitements of Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended). These
Standalone Financial Statements comply with Ind AS notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable regulatory norms / guidelines.

The standalone financial statements for the financial year ended 31* March, 2024 were

authotized and approved by the Board of Ditectors on 19" April, 2024.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard

requires a change in accounting policy hitherto in use.
21 RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

(A) Application of new and revised standards

The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are
effective for annual petiods beginning on or after 1 Apr 2023. The Company has not
made earlier adoption any other standard or amendment that has been issued but is not

yet effective:

Standard/ amendments applied time w.e.f 01.04.2023: -

The Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 shall be
effective from 01% Day of April 2023. An entity applies these amendments for annual
reporting petiods beginning on or after 1" April 2023. The summary, o Thé Tnajor

amendments and its impact on the Company are given hereunder:



REC Power Development & Consultancy Limited
Summary of standalone matetial accounting policies and-other explanatory information for the
year ended 31 March, 2024

i) Ind AS 1 — Presentation of financial statements - This amendment requires the entities
to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting
policies. Accounting Policy information, together with other information, is material
when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general
purpose financial statements. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the
impact of the amendment on the Company’s financial statements is insignificant.

ii) Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This
amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included
amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from
changes in accounting estimates. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there
is no impact on the Company’s financial statements.

iii) Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial
recognition exemption so- that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal
and offsetting temporary differences. The Company has evaluated the amendment and
there is no impact on the Company’s financial statements.

iv) Amendments/ revisionin other standards (IND AS 101, IND AS 102, IND AS 103,
IND AS 107, IND AS 109 and IND AS 115) are either not applicable or do not have

any material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

(B) Recent accounting pronouncements: Standatds issued but not yet Effective -
Nil

(C) Changes in Companies Act 2013.

The Ministry of Cotrporate Affairs (MCA) issued the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Amendment Rule 2021 on 24th March 2021. One of its inter alia new Rule 11 (g) dealing
with reporting on the use of the accounting software by a company for maintaining its
books of accounts which has a feature of recording audit trail. This has become effective
from 01st Day of April 2023.

3.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The material accounting policies applied in preparation of the financial statements are

as given below:
3.1 Basis of preparation and measutement

(i)  Going concern and basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern isedinder the

historical cost convention on accrual basis except for certain , asherhand



REC Power Development & Consultancy Limited
Summary of standalone material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the
year ended 31 March, 2024

financial liabilities are measured at fair values and amortized cost at the end of each

reporting petiod.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as curtent or non-current as per the criteria
set out in theEompanies Act, 2013. The Company has ascertained its operating cycle
as 12 months for the putpose of cutrent/non-current classification of assets and
liabilities. ’

(i)  Functional and presentation cutrency:
These financials are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s
functional currency, all amounts have been rounded off to nearest Lakhs (upto two

digits), unless otherwise indicated.

3.2 Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will

flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

The Company, to determine that how much and when revenue is recognized, what is
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues etc. uses the principles laid down

by the Ind AS 115. Revenue is recognized through a 5-step approach:

(1) Identify the contract(s) with customer;

(ii) Identify separate performance obligations in the contract;

(iii) Determine the transaction price;

(iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations; and

(v) Recognize revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied.

Income from Operation
Revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net

of discounts and other indirect taxes.

i) In Cost Plus Contracts - tevenue is recognized by including eligible contractual items

of expenditures plus proportionate margin as per contract;

(i) In Fixed Price Contracts —revenue is recognized on the basis of stage of completion of

the contract. The Company has assessed that the stage of completion determined as the




REC Power Development & Consultancy Limited

Summary of standalone material accounting policies and other explanatory information fot the
yeat ended 31 March, 2024

3.3

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if
circumstances change. Any resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues ot
costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the circumstances that give
tise to the revision become known by management.

Professional charges to be charged from the selected bidders/ developers for
transmission projects put on tariff based bidding is accounted for in the year in which
it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection of the professional charges will be

made.

Sale proceeds of Request for Proposal (RFP) has been recognized as other income in
the books of the company.

Tinterest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recogﬁized when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that

exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected hfe of the

‘financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes all expenses, direct and indirect, specifically
attributable to its acquisition and bringing it to its working condition for its intended
use. Incidental expenditure pending allocation and attributable to the acquisition of
fixed assets is allocated/capitalized with the related assets. Subsequent expenditure is
capitalized to the asset’s cartying amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed

when incurred.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation method, useful lives and residual value)

Depreciation on assets is provided on straight-line method to the extent of 95% of the
cost of the asset and in accordance to the useful lives prescribed under Schedule IT of
the Companies Act, 2013, except for the below assets where different useful lives have

been taken on the basis of technical assessment:




REC Power Development & Consultancy Limited
Summary of standalone material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the
year ended 31 March, 2024

Asset class Useful life as  per | Useful life adoptedﬂ
Schedule 11 by the Company

Office equipment-GPS, | 5 years 2 years

Mobile E

Furniture and fixtures 10 ye:;rs 5 years

Depreciation is calculated on pro rata basis from the date on which the asset is ready

for use or till the date the asset is sold or disposed.

Assets individually costing less than ¥ 5,000/- ate fully depreciated in the year of

purchase.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of

each financial year.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized
is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss atising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)

is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is derecognized.

3.4 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment
losses, if any. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including any
import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax
authorities), and any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its

intended use and net of ariy trade discounts and rebates.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of intangible assets is recognized in statement

of profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement (amortization method, nseful lives and residual value)
For amortization of intangibles the amortization amount of intangible assets is aliocated
on a systematic basis over the best estimate of its useful life. Management estimates

useful life of intangible assets to be 3 years.
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3.5

Fair value measurement

The Company measutes financial instruments at fair value which is the price that would

be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market patticipants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

* in the principal market for the asset ot liability, or

« in the absence of a principal matket, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

All assets and Habilities for which fair value is measured ot disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a wiole:
Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets ot
liabilities;

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement is unobsetvable.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. For assets
and liabilities that are recognized in the balance sheet on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing categotization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fait value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets
and liabilities on the basis of the nature, chatacteristics and risks of the asset or liability

and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
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3.6 Financial instrtuments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives tise to a financial asset of one entity

and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
!
Financial assets:

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. Purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on

the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
Financial assets carried at amortized cost — a financial asset is measured at the
amottized cost if both the following conditions are met:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in interest

income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition of financial assets

Financial assets (or where applicable, a part of financial asset or part of a group ot
similar financial assets) are derecognized (i.e. removed from the Corﬁpany’s balance
sheet) when the contractual rights to reccive the cash flows from the financial asset
have expired, or when the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards are
transferred. Further, if the Company has not retained control, it shall also derecognize

the financial asset and recognize separately as assets or liabilities an

» rights and

.

obligations created or retained in the transfer.
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Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial
assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g.,
loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

'b) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured at Fair value through profit
& loss account. (FVTPL).

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss

allowance on Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component.

" 'The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes
in credit tisk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs

at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impaitment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial tecognition. If credit tisk has not increased significantly, 12-month
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial tecognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the
lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

Financial Liabilities:
Initial recognition and measutement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial habilities at fair value

through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and




REC Power Development & Consultancy Limited
Summary of standalone material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the
yeat ended 31 March, 2024

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and
borrowings including financial guarahtee contracts and derivative financial

instruments.

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost

using the effective interest method.

De-recognition

A financial lability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as the de-recognition of the otiginal liability and the recognition of a new ljability. The
difference in the respective catrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle

the liabilities simultaneously.

3.7 Non-Current assets/Disposal Company held for sale
Non-current assets /Disposal Company are classified as held for sale if their cartying
amount will have recovered principally through sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are measured at lower of
their carrving amount or fair value less cost to sell, except for assets such as deferred
tax, assets arising from employee benefit, financials assets and contractual rights under

insurance contracts, which are specifically exempted from this requirement.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortized while they are classified as held
for sale. Non-cutrent assets held for sale are presented separately from other assets in

the balance sheet.

Whete the Company is. committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of an

associate, it-classifies investment in the associate (i.e. all the assets and liabilj

associate) as held for sale.

o
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3.8 Employee benefits:
Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Leave Encashment & Performance

Linked Incentive pay.

a) Fixed Tenure Employees

The Company recruits Fixed Tenure Employees for a period of 3 years, which is
further extendable for maximum up to 1 year and 6 months depending upon the
requirement and performance. The Company deducts and deposits the employees
benefit liabilities for Provident Fund. Other employee benefit statutory liabilities ¢.g.
Pension, ESI, and Gratuity etc are not applicable to the Company. The Company
provides for leave encashment for which liabilities are assessed as per the actuarial
valuation and disclosed in other notes to accounts. In addition to this company

provides performance Linked Incentive pay as per policy of the company.

b) Emplovees on secondment from holding company

The Company is managed by the employees deployed by REC Ltd (holding company)
on seconded basis and pays their charges as service fee for deemed service of
management service provided by its holding company. The Service charges being
charged as a fixed liability on the basis of actual employee cost, added with fixed
charges on account of future liability of Provident Fund, Gratuity, Superannuation and
Postretirement benefit etc. With paying above charges Company owes nothing to its
holding company for any future liabilities whatsoever. of such seconded employees.

The company recognize these cost along with service charge portion to cost of service.

c) Employees on Third Party Role

The Company is hiring employees through third party and pay their charges as service
of managerﬁent services. The Service charges being charged as a fixed liability on the
basis of actual employee cost. With paying above charges, company owes nothing to
third party for any future liabilities whatsoever of such employees. The company

recognize these cost along with service charge portion to cost of service

3.9 Taxation
Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current
tax. It is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except when it relates to an item
that is recognized in Other comprehensive income (OCI) or directly in equity, in which

case, the tax Is also recognized in Other comprehensive income or dire
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Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year,
using tax rates enacted ot substantively enacted and as applicable at the reporting date,

and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable income. Deferred tax on temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures is not provided if reversal
of these temporary differences can be controlled by the Company and it is probable

that reversal will not occur in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that
are expected to apply to their respective petiod of realization, provided those rates are
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are offset if thete is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax

liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporaty differences. A deferred tax
asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporaty difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realized.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax
income or expense in profit or loss, except where they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
related deferred tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or equity,

respectively.

Tax on Dividend is recognized at the same time when the liability to pay a dividend is
recognized.

3.10 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive

obligation as a tesult of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of economic
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3.12

reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties
associated with the present obligation. Provisions are discounted to their present

values, where the time value of money is material.

A contingent liability is disclosed for:
Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within
the control of the Company or

Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount

of the obligation cannot be made.

In those cases, where the outflow of economic resources as a result of present
obligations is considered improbable or remote, no liability is recognized or disclosure

is made.

Any reimbursement that the Company can be virtually certain to collect from a third
Y sy y
party concerning the obligation (such as from insurance) is recognized as a sepatate

asset. Flowever, this asset may not exceed the amount of the related provision.

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when the inflow of economic benefits

is probable, the related asset is disclosed.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted

average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

To calculate diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period atttibutable
to equity shareholdets and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the period ate adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shates.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting petiod, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets or cash generating units to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
;able

of the impaitment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate th
amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverab, @%%@g%;
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basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a teasonable and consistent allocation basis can be

identified.

3.13 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are
short-term balances (with an otiginal maturity of three months or less from the date
of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known

amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.14 Funds/grants received from government
Unutilized amount of grant/fund received are classified as current financial liabilities.

Interest wherever earned on such funds is credited to respective grant/fund account.

3.15 Lease Accounting

The Company considers whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as
‘a contsact, or part.of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying
asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration’. To apply this definition the
Company assesses whether the contract meets all the three key evaluations which are
whether:

* the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the
contract or implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made
available to the Company

* the Company has the right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from
use of the identified asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights
within the defined scope of the contract

* the Company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the
petiod of use. The Company assess whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for
what purpose’ the asset is used throughout the period of use. i

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability on the balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made
up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the
Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the
lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of
any incentives received). The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-
line basis from the lease commencement date to the eatdier of the end of fhg useful life
of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. :
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3.16

3.18

A prepaid espense up to T1,00,000/- is recognized as expense upg

At the commencement date, the Company measutes the lease liability at the present
value of the future lease payments, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease
if readily available, else the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.

Subsequent to initial measutement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and
increased for intetest. The Company has elected to account for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets using the practical expedients instead of recognizing a right-
of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognized as an
expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company as a lessor

As a lessot, the Company classifies its leases as either operating or finance leases. A

lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards

incidental to ownership of the undetlying asset, and classified as an operating lease if

it does not.

Finance leases- Management applies judgment in considering the substance of a lease
agreement and whether it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the leased asset. Key factors considered for transfer of risk and rewards
are the length of the lease term in relation to the economic life of the asset, the present
value of the minimum lease payments in relation to the asset’s fair value, and whether

the lessee obtains ownership of the asset at the end of the lease term.

Operating leases- All other leases are treated as operating leases. Receipts on operating

lease agreements are recognized as an income.

Dividend
Proposed dividends and interim dividends payable to the shareholders are recognized
as changes in equity in the period in which they ate approved by the shareholder’s

meeting and the Board of Directors respectively.

Material prior period ertots

Material ptior petiod errors are cotrected retrospectively by restating the comparative
amounts for the prior periods presented in which the error occurred. If the etror
occurred before the eatliest petiod presented, the opening balances of assets, liabilities

and equity for the earliest period presented, are restated.

Prepaid Expenses
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3.19 Rates and taxes
Overseas taxes on foreign assignments, indirect taxes, including Goods & Service Tax,
professional tax, property tax, entry tax, labour cess, octroi and any other applicable
taxes etc. paid/accrued in India or abroad for which credit are not available to the

company are charged to the Statement of Profit an(i Los;.

3.20 Recognition of expenses in case of SPVs
The Company has been appointed by Government of India to act as Bid Process Co-
ordinator for selection of the Transmission Service Provider (developer) for
Transmission Projects. Since the Company is incurring expenses for its project specific
associates (called SPVs), the expenses in these associates have been booked / allocated
at the petiod / yeat end by raising invoices to the respective SPVs. Direct expenses
have been booked to the respective associates for which the eipehditure has been
incurred. . Indirect/Common Expenses of the company has been allocated in
proportionate basis to different segments (such Consultancy, PIA — distribution &
transmission, BPC TBCB business (BPC) — Transmission SPV and Developer mode
& New initiatives). The expenses allocated to BPC/ TBCB business segment has been
further distributed equally to the respective SPVs from the month of issue of RFP or
incorporation of SPV, whichever is catlier, till the month in which tenth day from the
date of issue of Letter of Intent (LOI) for the transfer of the SPV falls. Part of the
month, if any, is considered as full month for cost allocation. The Company has also
charged interest on the funds deployed by it. The rate of interest charged is as per
intetest rate applicable for transmission & distribution loan of REC Limited (the
holding company) applicable for ungraded organisation. The rate applicable on the 1st
of the financial year shall be applicable for that entire financial year. If bid process
activity relating to any SPVs is kept in abeyance by the concerned authority due to any

reason, no cost allocation and interest for such period of abeyance shall be made.

In accordance to the applicable guidelines of TBCB process as issued by Ministry of
Power, Govt. of India, all the direct & indirect expenses, interest incurred.by the
company on behalf of SPV are debited to SPV and recoverable from transmission

setvice provider / successful bidder.

~ 3.21 Business combination

A business combination involving entities or businesses under common control is a

business combination in which all of the combining entities or businesses are ultimately

o > £
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common control are accounted for using the pooling of interest method. The net assets
of the transferor entity or business ate accounted at their carrying amounts on the date
of the acquisition subject to necessary adjustments required to harmonize accounting
policies. Any excess or shortfall of the consideration paid over the share capital of

transferor entity or business is transferred to capital reserve.

3.22 Significant management judgments in applying accounting policies and
estimation of uncertainty
The prepatation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make
judgments, estimates, and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and labilities, and the related disclosures. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.

3.22.1 Significant management judgments
Recognition of deferred tax assets/ liability — The extent to which deferred tax
assets can be recognized is based on an assessment of the probability of the future

taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of the
applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of several
external and internal factors which could result in detetioration of recoverable

amount of the assets.

Allocation of indirect / common expenses - Indirect/Common Expenses of the
company has been allocated in proportionate basis to different segments. The
allocation percentage has been reviewed based on the prevailing business activates
of the company during the financial year.

3.22.2 Significant estimates

Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets — Management reviews its
estimate of the useful lives of depteciable/amortizable assets at each reporting date,
based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to
technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assets.

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to
determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active market quotes are
not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with
how market participants would price the instrument. In estimating the fair value of

an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data
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available. In case of non-availability of market-observable data, Level 2 & Level 3

hietarchy is used for fair valuation.

Income Taxes — Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision
for income taxes, including amount expected to be paid/tecovered for uncertain
tax positions and also in respect of expected future profitability to assess deferred

tax asset.

Expected Credit Loss (‘ECL’) — The measurement of an expected credit loss
allowance for financial assets measured at amortized cost requires the use of
complex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and
credit behavior (e.g., likelihood of customers defaulting and resulting losses). The
Company makes significant judgments about the following while assessing
expected credit loss to estimate ECL:

o Determining criteria for a significant increase in credit risk;

e FHstablishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios

for each type of product/market and the associated ECL; and

e [istablishing groups of similar financial assets to measure ECL.

Leases — The management while determining the lease period of an asset makes
estimates on various extension and termination options, the same affects the period

of the lease and hence the determination of lease liability and right of use of assets.

Revenue from customers — The management while recognizing revenues, makes
several estimates including estimation of recoverability, allocation of transaction
prices to respective petrformance obligations, estimations of degree of work

completed (Petformance obligations satisfied) and estimated works.

3.23 Rounding off amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to
the nearest Lakhs as per the requirements of Schedule IIT of the Act unless otherwise
stated.
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REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited
(Formetly REC Power Distribution Company Limited)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March, 2024

4 Property, plant and equipment (All amounts in ¥ lakh, unless stated otherwise)
31 March, 2023
cstation Pufmturc & Office equipments | Computers Total
tixtures
Gross carrying value
As at 1 April, 2022 33.93 76.49 265.18 375.60
Additions 0.78 0.38 3.95 5.11
Adjustment/ Disposal (0.41) (4.38) (9.25) (14.04)
As at 31 Match, 2023 34.30 72.49 259.88 366.67
Accumulated depreciation
Asat 1 April, 2022 30.07 66.73 241.47 338.27
Charge for the year 1.67 3.75 9.50 14.92
Adjustment/ Disposal (0.40) (4.11) (8.38) (12.89)
As at 31 March, 2023 31.34 66.37 242.59 340.30
Net block as at 31 March, 2023 2.96 6.12 17.29 26.37
31 March, 2024
Pescapden Furni e Office equipments | Computers Total
fixrures
Gross carrying value
As at 1 April, 2023 34.30 72.49 259.88 366.67
Additions 6.58 5.82 69.64 82.04
Adjustment/ Disposal (9.36) (20.54) (75.22) (105.12)
: As at 31 March, 2024 31.52 57.77 254.30 343.59
Accumulated depreciation
Asat 1 April, 2023 31.34 66.37 242.59 340.30
Charge for the year 3.24 2.46 20.01 25.71
Adjustment/Disposal (9.03) (19.80) (70.44) (99.27)
As at 31 March, 2024 25.55 49.03 192.16 266.74
Net block as at 31 March, 2024 5.97 8.74 62.14 76.85

a) Gross block includes obsolete fixed assets but not disposed off of I 60.99 lakhs and depreciation reserve in

respect of these assets X 57.94 lakhs.

(b) Adjustment/Disposal - The adjustment/disposal is on accounts of asscts disposed off / written-off during the

year.
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REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited

(Formetly REC Power Distribution Company Limited)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March, 2024

5 Other intangible assets

(All amounts in ¥ lakh, unless stated otherwise)

Description

31 March, 2023

Computer software Toral in I;angib'!e assets

Gross catrying value

As at 1 April, 2022 14.72 14.72
Additions - =
Adjustment/Disposal 9.97) 9.97)
As at 31 March, 2023 475 4.75
Accumulated amottisation
As at 1 April, 2022 11.88 11.88
Amorttisation charge for the year 1.70 1.70
Adjustment/Disposal (9.71) 9.71)
As at 31 March, 2023 3.87 3.87
Net block as at 31 March, 2023 0.88 . 0.88
31 March, 2024

Description

Computer software Total intangible assets

Gross carrying value

As at 1 April, 2023 4.75 475
Additions - -
Adjustment/Disposal - -
As at 31 March, 2024 4.75 4.75
Accumulated amortisation
As at 1 April, 2023 3.87 3.87
Amortisation chasge for the year 0.88 0.88
Adjustment/Disposal : s
As at 31 March, 2024 475 4,75

Net block as at 31 March, 2024
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REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited
(Formerly REC Power Distribution Company Limited)
Notes forming part of Fihancial Statements for the year ending 31 March, 2024

(All amounts in ¥ lakh, unless stated otherwise)
6 Investments (Non Current)

As at As at

Particulas
e 31 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023

Investments in debentures or bonds
(a) Investment in tax free bonds-quoted (at amortized cost) (in holding company)

@) REC Limited
7.38% tax free 15 years Secured Redeemible Non Convertible Bonds of face vilue of ¥ -
1000/~ each, fully paid (31 March, 2024 / 31 Mach, 2023 : 100,000 / 100,000) 1,000.00 1,000.00

Matutity date 06-12-2027.
(i) REC Limited

15 years secured redeemable tax free bonds @8.46%, bonds of face value of ¥ 1000/- each, 3,000.00 3,000.00
fully paid (31 March, 2024 / 31 March, 2023 : 300,000 / 3,00,000)

Bond includes Rs. 2500.00 Lakh with maturity date 30-08-2028 , Rs. 310.00 Lakh with
maturity date 03-09-2028 and Rs 190.00 Lakh with matutty date 13-09-2028.

(iii) REC Limited
15 years secured redeemable tax free bonds @8.63%, bonds of face value of T 1000/- each, 200.00 200.00
fully paid (31 March, 2024 / 31 March, 2023 : 20,000/20,000)
Maturity date 23-03-2029.

(iv) REC Limited

20 years seeured redcemable tax free bonds @7.18%, bonds of face value of T 1000/- each, 34351 343,51
fully paid (31 March, 2024 / 31 March, 2023 : 34,351/34,351)
Maturity date 11-05-2035.

(b) Investment in tax free bonds (in others)-quoted (at amortized cost)

(i) Housing and Urban Development Cotporation Limited (HUDCO)

20 years sccured redeemable tax free bonds @8.76%, bonds of face value of % 1000/~ each,
fully paid (31 March, 2024 / 31 March, 2023: 50,000 / 50,000)

Matutity date 12-01-2034.

7.39% tax Free 15 years Secured Redeemable Non Convertible Bonds of face value of ¥
1000/- each, fully paid (31 March, 2024 / 31 March, 2023: 86,798 /86,798) 867.98 867.98

500.00 500.00

Bond includes Rs. 476.46 lakh with maturity date 08-02-2031 , Rs. 391.51 lakh with maturity
date 15-03-2031.

(ii) National Highway Authority of India Limited (NHAT)

7.35% tax free 15 years secured redeemable non convettible bonds of face value of ¥ 1000/-
each, fully paid (31 March, 2024 / 31 March, 2023: 42,855/42,855) 428.55 428.55
Maturity date 11-01-2031.

7.39% tax frec 15 years sccured redeemable non convertible bonds of face value of ¥ 1000/~
each, fully paid (31 March, 2024 / 31 March, 2023: 35,463/35,463)

Maturity date 09-03-2031.

(i) Indian Renewable Enetgy Development Agency (IREDA)

7.49% tax Free 15 years secured redecmable non convertible bonds of face value of ¥ 1000/~
cach, fully paid (31 Match, 2024 / 31 March, 2023: 61,308 /61,308)

with maturity date 21-01-2031.

(iv) Indian Railway Finance Cooporation (IRFC)

354.63 354.63

613.08 613.08

7.35% tax Free 15 years sceured redecmable non convertible bonds of face value of T 1000/-
each, fully paid (31 Maxch, 2024 / 31 March, 2023: 22,338 /22,338)

with maturity date 22-03-2031.
(v) National Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development (NABARD)

7.35% tax Free 15 years sceured redeemable non convertible bonds of face value of ¥ 1000/-
cach, fully paid (31 March, 2024 / 31 March, 2023: 14,028 /14,028)

with maturity date 22-03-2031.

223.38 22338

140.28 140.28

7,671.41 7,671.41

Agaregate matket value of quoted investment §,880.98 9,039.03
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REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited
(Formerly REC Power Distribution Company 1imited)

(a) Refer Note 43 for fair value disclosure.

Notes forming patt of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March, 2024

(All amounts in ¥ Jakh, unless stated otherwise)

(b) Investments in quoted sccurities are measured at amortsed cost as these investments are held solely for payments of principal and

interest (SPPT).

(c) The company has no unquoted investments during the current year as well as previous year.

Other financial assets (Non Current)

. As at As at
Pasticulars
31 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
Term deposits with maturity more than 12 months 2,300.87 7,085.71
2,300.87 7,085.71
(2) The above term deposits are not earmarked.
Income tax assets (net)
Particulars Aalas AT
31 March, 2024 31 Maich, 2023
Income Tax Refundable 734.24 1,011.46
Provision Against Income Tax Refund (80.27) -
Assessment Year wise detail of Income tax refundable: -for AY 2017-18 ~ Rs. 42.74 Lakhs,
AY 2018-19 - Rs.44.43 Lakhs, AY 2019-20 - Rs.419.23 Lakhs. AY 2020-21(TPCL) - Rs.13.53
Lakhs, AY 2020-21 - Rs. 80.27 AY 2021-22 - Rs.51.03 Lakhs, AY 2022-23 - Rs. 64.44 Lakhs
& AY 2023-24 - Rs.18.57 Lakhs
653.97 1,011.46
Deferred tax assets (net)
. As at As at
Particulars
31 Mazrch, 2024 31 March, 2023
Deferred Tax Asset 1,550.04 3,057.10
1,550.04 3,057.10
Movement in deferred tax balances as at 31 March, 2024
Agat Charged to profit =L
and loss account
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities 31 March, 2023 31 March, 2024
Financial assets and liabilitics measured at amortized cost - . -
Total deferred tax liabilities = - -
Tax effect of items constituting defetred tax assets:
Allowance for expected credit loss 3,012.64 (1,498.50) 1,514.14
On employec's retitement benefits (11.95) 20.84 8.89
Property, plant and cquipment: Impact of difference between
depteciation charged as per income tax act and charged in the books 44.30 (10.03) 34.27
Provision for expenses 12.11 (19.37) (7.26)
Financial assets and liabilities measured at amottized cost ~ - -
Total deferred tax assets 3,057.10 (1,507.06) 1,550.04
Deferred tax assets (net) 3,057.10 (1,507.06) 1,550.04

Yo,
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REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited
(Formerly REC Power Distribution Company Limired)
Notes forming patt of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March, 2024 e

(All amounts in ¥ lakh, unless stated otherwise)

Movement in defetred tax balances as at 31 March, 2023

As at Charged to profit Asat
31 March, 2022 2pdlossaccount 400 4 2023
Tax effect of items constituting defetred tax liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities measuted at amortized cost 0.94 0.949) -
Propetty, plant and equipment: Impact of difference between - N
depteciation as pet income tax act and depreciation charged in the books
Total deferred tax liabilities 0.94 (0.94) -
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets:
Allowance for expected credit loss 2,340.47 672.17 3,012.64
On employee's retirement benefits 29.15 (41.10) (11.95)
Property, plant and equipment: Impact of difference between
depreciation as per income tax act and depreciation charged in the books 47.27 2.97) 4430
Right of Use asset (net of lease liability) ~
Provision for expenses 121.61 (109.50) 12.11
Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortized cost - -
Total deferred tax assets 2,538.50 518.60 3,057.10
Deferred tax assets (net) 2,537.56 519.54 3,057.10
10 Other non current assets
As at As at
Particul:
B e 31 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
Prepaid expenses - 2.81
- 2.81
11 Trade receivables
Particulars Ao dsat
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Unsecured, considered good 11,628.14 12,859.15
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (883.52) (2,566.59)
: 10,744.62 10,292.56
Trade receivables with significant increase in credit risk 5,890.56 3,762.60
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (1,657.53) (2,807.29)
4,233.03 955.31
Credit impaired 3,946.45 5,634.66
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (3,426.25) (5,596.48)
520.20 38.18
15,497.85 11,286.05
Gross Trade Receivable 21,465.15 22,256.41
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss* (5,967.30) (10,970.36)
TDS Unzeconciled Assets - 157.02
Trade Receivables 15,497.85 11,443.07

i) There is no disagreement with the parties of the company. Accordingly, all the trade reccivables under each category has been

considered undisputed.

if) Trade receivables more than one year and upto three year have been categotised as teceivables having significant increase in credit
risk. Trade receivables more than three years has been categorised as credit impaired receivables.




REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited
(Formerly REC Power Distribution Company Limited)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March, 2024 =

(All amounts in X lakh, urless stated otherwise)

iti) Ageing of trade receivables: -

As at 31st March 2024
Particulars Not Due | Less than| 6 month 1to2 2to3 More than Total
6 month | to 1 yeax years years 3 years
Unsecured, considered pood 5,547.78 | 3,104.08 | 2,976.28 - - - 11,628.14
Trade receivables with [
significant increase in credit risk i 5,010.33 880.23 B 5,890.56
Credit impaited - = - - 3,946.45 3,946.45
5,547.78 | 3,104.08 | 2,976.28 | 5,010.33 880.23 3,946.45 | 21,465.15
As at 31st March 2023
Particulats Not Due | Less than| 6 month 1to2 2t03 Mote than Total
6 month | to 1 year vears vears 3 years
Unsecured, considered rood 3,874.79 | 5,863.52 | 3,120.84 . - 12,859.15
Trade reccivables with
sionificant increase in credit sk i ) 2,131.89 | 1,630.71 ) 3,762.60
Credit impaired - ~ - - - 5,634.66 | . 5,634.66
3,874.79 | 5,863.52 | 3,120.84 | 2,131.89 1,630.71 5,634.66 | 22,256.41

*Refer note 44 - Financial tisk management for assessment of expected credit losses.
i2 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars : 2% Aehe 4
31 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
Balances with banks:

- with scheduled banks in current accounts 2,141.25 969.87
Term deposits (with maturity upto 3 months) 19,508.64 -
Term Deposits (with maturity upto 3 months) * 19,056.43 -

: 21,649.89 969.87

13 Other bank balances
Particulars Asat Asa
31 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023

Farmarked balances for deposit works* 4,620.71 13,163.06
Barmarked balances with government fund accounts 970.15 1,477.61
Term deposits with temaining maturity mote than 3 months but less than 12 months 16,839.15 18,129.54
22,430.01 32,770.21

* Barmarked balances for deposit work are the funds received from central government, state government and utility for execution of
project work on behalf of them and to be used exclusively for the payments related to those projects only.

14 Other financial assets (Current)

. As at As at
Eighe 31 March, 2024 | 31 Macch, 2023
Contract assets™ 2,407.45 2,483.05
Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti Yojana Fund** - 302.40
Retention money deposits 48.85 86.37
Intetest Accrued on bonds 207.67 205.61
Security deposits paid 11.12 49.44
Receivable against NFMS 365.83 -
Other receivables 0.03 22.53
3,040.95 3,149.40
ECL against Retention money deposits (48.85) (48.85)
2,992.10 3,100.55

#Refer Note 38F for details of Contract assets.
**Refer Note for details
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REC-Power Development and Consultancy Limited
(Formerly REC Power Distribution Company Limited)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March, 2024

(All amounts in ¥ Jakh, unless stated otherwisc)

15 Cutrent tax assets (Net)

50000 equity shares of X 10/-each

z As at As at
il v 31 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
Advance tax and TDS 4,476.03 -
Less : Provision for income tax (3,610.48) -
865.55 -
16 Other cutrent assets
. As at As at
Pagtionss 31 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
Advances to employees 1.28 0.09
Prepaid expenses ) 471 2.00
Balances with statutory and government authorities* 488.97 470.43
Advance to suppliers 0.29 0.29
CSR Pre-Spent 18.56 -
Tax deposited on income tax demands under contest 5.97 597
Advance to smart meter contractors 2,335.83 -
2,855.61 478.78
* Balances with statutory and government authorities includes input tax credit and tds credit under GST.
## Refer Note 46 for details of tax deposited on income tax demands under contest.
17 Assets/Liabilities classified as held for sale
Particulars e As(pt
31 Match, 2024 | 31 Mazch, 2023
Assets classified as held for sale
(A) Tnvestment in subsidiaries (refer note 17.1) 90.00 65.00
(B) Amount receivable from subsidiasies (refer note 17.2) 1,925.08 1,339.82
(C) Provision for impairment on assets classified as heid for sale o (973.35)
Total (A+B+C) 2,015.08 431.47
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale
(D) Payable to subsidiaries (refer note 17.3) - 1.79
Total(D}) - 1.79
Disposal group (A+B+C-D) 2,015.08 429.68
Note - Refer Note 41 for details related to related party transaction.
17.1 Investments in Subsidiaries
Particulars At o
31 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
Investments in Equity Instruments of subsidiaries (fully paid 1ip)
Chandi] Transmission Limited - 5.00
50000 cquity shares of T 10/-each
Dumka Transmission Limited - 5.00
50000 equity shases of ¥ 10/-cach
Kodegma Transmission Limited - 5.00
50000 equity shates of ¥ 10/-cach
Mandar Transmission Limited - 5,00
50000 equity shares of ¥ 10/-cach
Bidar Transmission Limited - 5,00
50000 cquity shares of T 10/-cach
Beawar Transmission Limited - 5.00
50000 equity shares of ¥ 10/-each
Khavda 1I-D Transmission Limited - 5.00
50000 equity shares of T 10/-each
KPS1 Transmission Limited - 5.00

Ramgarb IT Transmission Limited
50000 cquity shares of X 10/-each

Sikar Khetti Transmission Limited
50000 equity shases of ¥ 10/-cach

Luhri Power Transmission Limited
50000 cquity shares of ¥ 10/-cach

5.00
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REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited
(Formerly REC Power Distribution Company Limited)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March, 2024. * —

(All amounts in ¥ lakh, unless stated otherwise)

Meerut Shamli Power Transmission Limited 5.00 5.00
50000 equity shares of T 10/-cach

NERES XVI Power Transmission Limited 5.00 5.00
50000 equity shares of ¥ 10/-cach

Jalpura Khusja Power Transmission Limited 5.00
50000 equity shares of ¥ 10/-each

Rajasthan Part 1 Power Transmission Limited o 5.00 |
50000 equity shates of ¥ 10/-each

Shongtong Powes Transmission Limited 5.00
50000 equity shates of ¥ 10/-each

Kallam Transco Limited 5.00
50000 equity shates of ¥ 10/-each

Khavda IV C Power Ttansmission Limited 5.00
50000 equity shares of T 10/-each

Khavda IVA Power Transmission Limited 5.00
50000 equity shares of ¥ 10/-each

Khavda IV-E2 Power Transmission Limited 5.00
50000 equity shares of T 10/-cach

Khavda V A Power Transmission Limited 5.00
50000 equity shates of T 10/-each

Rajasthan TV A Power Transmission Limited 5.00
50000 equity shares of ¥ 10/-cach

Rajasthan TV C Power Transmission Limited 5.00
50000 equity shases of ¥ 10/-cach

Rajasthan TV E Power Transmission Limited 5.00
50000 equity shares of T 10/-cach

Rajasthan IV Hi Power Transmission Limited 5.00
50000 equity shares of ¥ 10/-cach

Kankani Power Transmisison Limited 5.00
50000 equity shates of ¥ 10/-cach

NERGS-1 Power Transmission Limited 5.00
50000 equity shares of T 10/-cach

Tumkur-II REZ Power Transmission Limited 5.00
50000 equity shates of ¥ 10/-cach

Total 90.00 65.00

Note : Equity shares includes shates held by officers as nominec of the company.
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REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited
(Formerly REC Power Distribution Company Limited)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March, 2024 . =

17.2 Amount receivable from Subsidiaries

17.3

(All amounts in ¥ lakh, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars e ating AF gL
: 31 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
Chandil Transmission Limited 0.25 254.43
Dumka Transmission Limited 0.25 248.24
Mandar Transmission Limited 0.25 222.50
Koderma Transmission Limited 0.25 22818
Bidat Transmission Litited - 10.08
Sikar Khetri Transmission Limited ~ 67.30
KPS1 Transmission Limited - 58.35
Ramgarh 11 Transmission Limited 69.60
Beawar Transmission Limited - 70.94
Tuhri Power Transmission Limited 107.43 4815
Meerut Shamli Power Transmission Limited 184.98 43.29
NERES XVI Power Transmission Limited 91.35 18.76
FRES-XXXXIX Power Transmission Timited 5.16 -
Jalpura Khutja Power Transmission Limited 380.56 -
Rajasthan Part 1 Power Transmission Fimited 66.79 -
Shongtong Power Transmission Limited 56.46 -
Khavda IV A Power Transmission Limited 54.15 -
Khavda IV C Power Transmission Limited 41.36 -
Khavda IV E2 Power Transmission Limited 33.30 -
Khavda V-A Power Transmission Lirnited 42.41 -
Rajasthan IVA Power Transmission Limited 40.94 =
Rajasthan IVC Power Transmission Limited 33.54 -
Rajasthan IV E Power Transmission Limited 38.09 -
Rajasthan IV H1 Power Transmsision Limited 51.39 =
Kallam Transco Limited 641.10 -
NERGS-1 Power Transmission Limited 35.21 -
Tumlkur-1I REZ Power Transmission Limited 19.81
Kankani Power Transmission Limited 0.05
1,925.08 1,339.82

Provision for impairment on assets classified as held for sale
Chandil Transmission Limited - 259.43
Dumka Transmission Limited 253.24
Mandar Transmission Limited 227.50
Koderma Transmission Limited - 233.18

- 973.35
Amount receivable from subsidiaries (net of provisions) 1,925.08 366.47
Payable to Subsidiaries

Particulars 18 84 ety
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023

Khavda II-D Transmission Limited = 1.79

- 1.79




REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited
(Fotmetly REC Power Distribution Company Limited)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March, 2024 :
(All amounts in X lakh, unless stated otherwise)

18 Equity share capital

Particulars Asat peat
' 31 Mareh, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
Authorized equity share capital
20,050,000 (31 March, 2024 : 20,050,000) Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 2,005.00 2,005.00
2,005.00 2,005.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up equity shate capital
85,500 (31 March, 2024 : 85,500) Equity shares of X 10 each 8.55 8.55
8.55 8.55

i) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shates having par value of X 10 pet share. Bach holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share. The Company declates and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the
Board of Ditectors is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity

shates held by the sharcholders.

ii) Reconciliation of equity shates outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at 31 March, 2024 As at 31 Mazrch, 2023
No. of shares ) No. of shares )
Equity share capital of ¥ 10 each fully paid up
Balance at the beginning of the year 85,500 8,55,000.00 85,500 . 8,55,000.00
Add: Issued during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 85,500 8,55,000.00 85,500 8,55,000.00

iii) Shareholders holding more than 5% of shares of the Company as at balance sheet.date:

As at 31 March, 2024 As at 31 March, 2023
No. of shares % holding  No. of shares % holding
85,494 Equity shates held by REC Limited
(Promotet & holding company) )
and balance 6 equity shates through other gt GOV HAL LU b0
nominee of REC Limited
iv) Shares held by promoter company:
As at 31 March, 2024 As at 31 March, 2023
No. of shares % holding  No. of shares % holding
85,494 Equity shates held by REC Limited
(Promoter & holding company)
85,500 100.00% 85,500 100.00%

and balance 6 equity shares through other
nominee of REC Limited

There is no change in holding of promoter company duting the financial year 2023-24.

v) The Company has neither issued equity shares pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash ot any
bonus shares nor has there been any buy-back of shares in the curtent year and five years immediately preceding the
balance sheet date except issuance of shares in lieu of purchase consideration. .




REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited
(Formerly REC Power Distribution Company Limited)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March, 2024

(All amounts in X lakh, unless stated otherwisc)

19 Other equity

Particulars <) P R
=i 31 Masch, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
General reserve . il Il
Balance at the beginning of the year 5,313.55 5,313.55
Add: Movement during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year ' 5,313.55 5,313.55
Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the yeat 38,769.83 27,535.49
Add : Transferred from statement of profit and loss : 14,964.00 13,978.90
53,733.83 41,514.39

Less: Dividends

- Final Dividend for the previous year (2,340.13) (890.91)

- Intetim Dividend for the year r (1,853.65)
Balance at the end of the year 51,393.70 38,769.83
Capital reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 1.45 1.45
Add: Movement duging the year | = =
Balance at the end of the year ' 1.45 1.45
Total other equity 56,708.70 44,084.83
Note:

a) General reserve is created from time to time by way of transfer of profits from retained earnings for approptiation
purposes. General reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another.

b) Profits made by the company duting the year are transferred to retained earnings from Statement of Profit and Loss.

c) Capital resetve represents the difference between the amount recorded: as share capital issued plus any additional
purchase consideration and the amount of share capital of transferor (REC Transmission Projects Company Ltd.) on
account of amalgamation of REC Transmission Projects Company Limited with REC Power Distribution Company
Limited as per Ind AS 103-Business Combinations.

d) Subsequent to the year ended 31 Maxch, 2024; the Board of Disectors of the Company on a meeting held on 19th
April, 2024 has proposed total divided amounting to ¥ 5251 per shate on 85500 no. of shares totaling T 4489.61
lakh (FY 2022-23 - Proposed final Dividend: ¥ 2737 per shate on 85500 no. of shares totaling X 2340.13 lakh ), the effect
of the same has not been taken into financial statements as the same is subject to the approval by the shaseholders of the
Company.




REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited
(Formetly REC Power Distribution Company Limited)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March; 2024

(All amounts in T lakh, unless stated otherwise)

20 Provisions (Non cutrent)
Particulars e iz
' 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences 34.50 25.26
34.50 25.26
Provision for compensated absences
Opening Balance 25.26 38.01
Addition Duting the year 34.50 13.58
Utilised during the year (25.26) (26.33)
Adjusted during the year = -
Closing balance 34.50 25.26
*Refer Note 42 for details
21 Trade payables
As at Asat

Particulars

31 March, 2024

31 Maxch, 2023

Total outstanding dues of micro & small enterprises

Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than micro & small

enterprises

9,051.31

4,167.59

9,051.31

4,167.59

i) There is no disagreement with the parties of the company. Accordingly, all the trade payables under
each category has been considered undisputed.

ii) Ageing of Trade Payables.
As on 31st March 2024

Particulars Less than | Mote than 1 More More Total
1 year years to 2 than 2 than 3
years years to 3 years
years
Micro & Small enterprises = - - - 3
Others 7,419.86 1,284.35 344.92 2.18 | 9,051.31
As on 31st March 2023
Particulars Less than | Mote than 1 More More Total
1 year years to 2 than 2 than 3
years years to 3 years
years
Micro & Small enterprises - - - - -
Others 1,631.42 1,263.66 32.70 | 1,239.81 | 4,167.59




Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March, 2024

22

REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited

(Formetly REC Power Distribution Company Limited)

(All amounts in T lakh, unless stated otherwise)

iii) Dues to micro and small enterprises pursuant to section 22 of the Micto, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act (MSMED), 2006

On the basis of confirmation obtained from suppliers who have registered themselves under the Micto, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED ‘Act, 2006) and based on the information available

with the company, the following are the details:

Patticulars

31 March, 2024

31 March, 2023

I) (a) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the
end of the accounting year

(b) Interest due thercon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the
end of the accounting year

IT) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16,
along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond
the appointed day during each accounting year

IIT) Suppliers for whom confirmation not received is deemed not
registered under MSMED,2006 Act and Interest payable on payment
made but not claimed has not been provided.

IV) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end
of each accounting year; and

V) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in
the succeeding years, unti] such date when the interest dues as above
are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of
MSMED,2006 ACT.

Other financial liabilities (Current)

Particulars

As at
31 March, 2024

As at
31 March, 2023

Earnest money deposits 29.48 14041
Expenses payables 1,557.81 1,432.49
Advance for deposit work 4,790.22 11,966.61
Payable to REC Limited 695.89 669.79
Petformance bank guarantee retained 365.07 192.11
Employee payable 11.80 8.11
Government fund for schemes -
Power System Development Fund for Rural Feeder Monitoring 953.44 1,387.58
Scheme
Ugja Mitra Scheme Fund 14.66 7.83
8,418.37 15,804.93

Refer Note 39 for details on Advance for deposit works.
Refer Note for details on Government fund for schemes.
Refer Note 41 for details on Payable to related parties.
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REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited

(Formerly REC Power Disttibution Company Limited)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March; 2024

23

24

25

(All amounts in ¥ lakh, unless stated otherwise)

Other current liabilities
] As at As at

Haciientac 31 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
Contract Liability 2,918.11 700.82
Statutory dues '575.06 519.05
Advance as performance bank guarantee® = 9.50
Statutory dues for deposit work 1,442.23 259.08
Unidentified Receipts 5 0.28
BG Invoked 1,360.00 1,360.00
6,295.40 2,848.73

* Tt represents liability tecognised as per IndAS-109 in respect of amount retained for performance obligation of

M/s PEC Ltd.

BG Invoked - M/s Adani Transmission Limited has submitted bid security in form of bank guarantee in the

request for proposal (RFP) floated for KPS 1 Transmission Limited. This bid security is subject to invocation in

case the bidder withdrawn from the bid after qualification. M/s Adani Transmission Limited has withdrawn from

the bid and accordingly RECPDCL has invoked the bid security in form of bank guarantee. However M/s Adani

Transmission Limited has filed a writ petiion (3206/2023) before Delhi High Court against this invocation.

Pending outcome in the subject matter the amount has been accounted for as Other Cutrent Liability.

Provisions (Current)

Pardeulars

As at
31 March, 2024

As at
31 March, 2023

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for compensated absences 1.50 1.52
Provision fot Performance Linked Incentive 40.90 41.57
42.40 43.09
Provision for compensated absences
Opening Balance 1.52 1.84
Addition Dutring the year 1.50 1.52
Utlised during the year (1.52) (1.84)
Adjusted during the year - -
Closing balance 1.50 1.52
Provision for Performance Linked Incentive
Opening Balance 41.57 75.98
Addition During the year 40.90 41.57
Utllised duting the year (34.98) (35.33)
Adjusted during the year (6.59) (40.65)
Closing balance 40.90 41.57

Current tax liabilities (net)

Particulars

As at

Provision for income tax
Less: Advance tax and TDS

31 March, 20247 - 31

1)
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REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited

(Formerly REC Power Distribution Company Limited)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March, 2024
(All amounts in ¥ lakh, unless stated otherwise)
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27

Revenue from operations

Parceiy For the year ended | For the year ended
‘ ) 31 March, 2024 31 Marxch, 2023
Income from Consultancy Services o 4,658.43 12,312.19
Project implementing agency (PIA)- Infrastructure works 2,104.83 3,014.28
(including distribution & transmission)
Government Scheme Management/Monitoring Fees 168.00 96.00
Bid Process Coordinator Business (TBCB Projects/Others) 11,641.81 12,593.48
Smart Meteting Projects (PIA Fee) 2,561.10 -
Gross invoicing Projects Revenue 14,647.85 468.46
35,782.02 28,484.41

Note:-

1) Detail of Unbilled Revenue (Revenue has been recognised due to
satisfaction of petformace obligation, but invoicing of the same is
pending at the year end) :-

31 March, 2024

31 March, 2023

Income from Consultancy Services 418.81 1,273.59

Project implementing agency (PIA)- Infrastructure works (including ) 477 42

distribution & transmission)

Bid Process Coordinator Business (TBCB Projects/Others) 700.00 =

Smart Metering Projects (PIA Fee) 1,288.64 564.46
2,407.45 2,315.47

2) Bid Process Coordinator Business (TBCB Projects/Others) includes revenue of Rs. 1200 Lacs (Previous year Nil)
from Bid Process Coordinator undet scheme for flexibility in generation and scheduling of thermal / hydro power

stations through bundling with Renewable Energy.

Refer note 38 for details related to revenue from operations.

Other income

Particulats For the year ended | Por the year ended

31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Interest income on fixed deposits 1,629.04 722.72
Interest income on'tax free bonds 610.60 607.82

Interest on income tax refund 27.81 -
Interest income from SPVs 70.86 56.96
Interest income on NCDs - 49.92

Interest income on Advance to parties 183.03 -
Interest incotme on staggered papers - 741
Interest income on other financial assets measured at arriortized cost 9.50 16.20
Liabilities /Provisions written back 220.91 156.62
Liquidation damages 1.42 0.01
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.36 0.04
RFQ/RFP/Tender fee 525.705 624.55

Miscellaneous income

SN, 0.30

529242.55




REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited

(Formerly REC Power Distribution Company Limited)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 Match, 2024
(Al amounts in ¥ lakh, unless stated otherwise)
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29

Cost of services rendered
= Particnian Fot the year ended | For the year ended
aruculas ,
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Project technical services - PMC/PMA/DPR 1,985.90 2,362.85
Project outsourced manpower 3,281.31 4,479.90
Manpower Charges for RDSS Scheme and REC Business 113.93 213.50
Sutvey charges 8.09 -
Gross invoicing Projects Expenses 14,647.85 468.46
20,087.57 7,738.26
Manpower Cost allocated to DDUGJY - -
Manpowet Cost allocated to PSDF/RFMS (94.62) (104.69)
Manpower Cost allocated to Urja Mitra Scheme (34.59) (32.54)
Manpowet cost reimbursable from SPV-Cost of service rendered (472.12) (358.11)
IT Comp Expense.Allocated to NFMS (744.76) -
Manpower/PMU Cost Allocated to NFMS 96.79) -
18,644.69 7,242.92

Manpower Cost teimbursable from SPV's - The company is incurring expenditure (direct as well as indirect
expenses) on behalf of SPV's. These expenditures are to be reimbursed by the SPV's to the company. The company
raised petiodic invoices to the tespective SPV's for reimbursement of these expenditures. The company presented
these reimbursement as deduction to cost of services rendered for true and fait view of expense incurred by the
company related to its operations. '

Manpower/ PMU Cost & IT Comp cost allocated to NFMS - The company is implementing & monitoting
NFMS Scheme on pan India basis on the behalf of Ministty of Power - Government of India. The expenditure
incurred related to NFMS is recoverable from the NFMS fund received / receivable from Ministry of Power. The
company presented these debit to the fund / reimbursement as deduction to cost of services rendered for true and fair
view of expense incutred by the company related to its operations.

Manpower Cost allocated to rural feeder monitoring scheme (RFMS) & Urja Mitra Scheme - The company is
implementing & monitoring RFMS & Usja Mitra Scheme on pan India basis on the behalf of Ministry of Power -
Government of India. The expenditure incurred on deployment of manpower in REMS are debited to fund received
from power sector development fund (PSDF) managed by Power Grid Corporation of India Limited and expenditure
incursed on deployment of manpower in Utja Mitra Scheme are debited to fund received form Ministry of Powet to
the company. The company presented these debit to the fund / reimbursement as deduction to cost of setvices

rendered for true and fair view of expense incurted by the company related to its operations.

Employee benefits expense

For the year ended | For the year ended

Peric 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Salaries and wages 680.11 569.08
Contribution to provident and other funds 43.09 -36.98
Staff welfare expenses 125.25 100.15
848.45 706.21
Manpower cost reimbursable from SPV-Employee Benefit Exp (53.64) (59.90)

Employee Cost Allocated to NFMS

* Refer Note 28 for noting on Manpowet Cost reimbursable from SPV & Employee Cost

Note - For disclosures related to provision for employee benefits, refer note 42 - Employe



REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited

(Formertly REC Power Disuibution Company Limited)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March, 2024
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32

33

Finance costs

(All amounts in ¥ lakh, unless stated otherwise)

; For the year ended | For the year ended
Particul
it 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Intetest expense on other financial liabilities méasuted at amortized > 11.49 17.93
cost
Interest on income tax 206.59 -
218.08 17.93

Depreciation and amortization expense

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
bl 1 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment (Refer note 4) 25.71 14.92
Amortzation of Other intangible assets (Refer note 5) 0.88 1.70
26.59 16.62
Impairment on financial assets
) For the yeat ended | For the year ended
Particular
R 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Provision (net of reversal) (2,178.63) 2,720.82
Bad debts 60.13 4.79
(2,118.50) 2,725.61
Note - The impairment is related to assets under contracts with customers.
Refer Note 44 for derails
Corporate social responsibility expenses
4 For the yeat ended | For the year ended
Particul
= 31 March, 2024 31 Mach, 2023
CSR expenditure 191.90 126.16
191.90 126.16
Disclosure on CSR Expenses U/s 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
(a) Gross amount required to be spent on CSR activities 191.9 126.16
{b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 191.9 126.16
{c) Amount of expenditure incurred dusing the year
- on construction/acquisition of assets = -
- on purpose other than above 210.46 126.16
(d) Excess/ (Shortfall) at the end of the yeat 18.56 -

(¢) Total of previous years shortfall

{ CSR expenses for the yeat inculdes Rs. Nil (previous year Rs. 8.46 lacs) of pre spent amount

(f) Nature of CSR activities




REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited

(Formerly REC Power Distribution Company Limited)

Notes forming patt of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March, 2024

(All amounts in ¥ lakh, unless stated otherwise)

The company has contributed/incurred expenditure in the below mentioned CSR

activities (For the year ended 31st March 2024 )

Activities as per

Particulars B — Schedule VII Amount
(i) CSR assistance for undertaking “Jan Arogyam” Community| Health / Sanitation / 113.77
Healthcate Programme in districe Gautam Buddha Nagar, Uttar Drinking Water
Pradesh,
CSR assistance to Chief Medical Officer district Kupwara for up-
gradation of Sub-District Hospital (SDH) Kupwara by construction of]
boundary wall
Distribution of Aids and Assistive Devices to Senior Citizens &
Divyangjans (Person with Disabilities) - ALIMCO
Procurement of C-Arm Machine for Enhancing Diagnostic and Surgical
Excellence in Civil Hospital Sec-10, Gurugram
(i) CSR Assistance for “Providing 1000 school benches made from Education 62.69
recyclable plastic waste in .government schools and conducting
awareness programme in 75 schools towards climate change &
sustainability” in Delhi
(i) CSR Assistance for “Women Empowerment through education in| Women empowerment 19.79
Art & Culture” at Chittaranjan Park, Delhi
(iv) CSR Assistance for “Providing a Transport Vehicle for usage in Environment 14.21
Reducing Man-Animal conflict in Gajendragada and -Rona Talukas of] sustainability
Gadag District, Kanataka"

210.46
The company has contributed/incurred expenditure in the below mentioned CSR
activities (For the year ended 31st March 2023 )
Particulars Activities as pey Amount

Schedule VII

(i) CSR support to District Magistrate/ Collector of Bhojpur & Patna Health 38.95
for development of medical infrastructure facilities in State of Bihar.
(ii) Contribution towards PM Cares Fund. PM Cares 12.50
(i) CSR assistance to Healthy aging India for providing Cost-effective Setting up old age 42.00
living facility to Needy and less-served older adults in Sriniwaspuri, Homes
Ashram, Delhi,
(iv) CSR assistance to ASHI for aged welfare association (AHAWA)| Rural Development & 24.25
towards strengthering up of district school, Gollapalli, Elure in State of] Education
Andhra Pradesh.

117.70

() The company has not entered any transaction with related party in relation to CSR expenditure during the year.




REC Powet Development and Consultancy Limited

(Formetly REC Power Disttibutdon Company Limited)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March, 2024
(All amounts in T lakh, unless stated otherwise)

34

(h) Movements of provision with respect to CSR liability/expenditure

31 Match, 2024

31 March, 2023

Opening balance of provision 10.50 4.09
Add - Provision made during the year - ~ 1050
Less - Provision utilised during the year 10.50 4.09
Closing balance of provision - 10.50
Other expenses
Particulats For the year ended | Por the year ended
31 March, 2024 31 Martch, 2023
Rent & Hire Charges 630.20 676.10
Rates and taxes 85.39 9.57
Repairs, maintenance & electricity 205.54 233.61
Advertisement Expense 23.46 58.84
Publicity & Promotion BExpenses 28.04 3173
Meeting and Conference Expense 213 0.90
Communication cost 5.96 6.14
Travelling and conveyance 249.66 264.87
Printing and stationary 11.68 1531
Legal & Professional charges 212.46 181.82
Bank charges 3.31 2.67
Auditors' remuneration 8.37 8.25
Loss on sale of propetty, plant and equipment (net) 1.71 0.80
Other Expenses 33.15 30.50
Expenses incurred for SPV's** 42617 288.05
Other Expenses on NFMS 0.05 3.47
1,927.28 1,812.63
Ditect Cost reimbutsable from SPV (426.17) (282.22)
Inditect Cost reimbursable from SPV (187.45) (216.84)
Other expenses allocated to NFIMS (54.13)
1,259.53 1,313.57
*Details of auditors remuneration are as under :
Statutory auditor
As auditors
- Audir fees 5.75 4.50
- Tax audit 1.60 2.00
Internal auditor
- Audit fees 0.77 1.75
Secretarial auditor
- Audit fees ‘0.25 -
8.37 8.25

**Hxpenses incurted for SPV's teptesents direct expenses (such as survey, advertisement, cons
expenses (such as Office rent, Vehicle hire chatges, powet & fuel and maintenance of offic
‘company on behalf of SPV's and are tecovered from SPV's. The reimbursement is shownga
expense for true and fait view of expenses incurted by the company related to its operations; :




REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited
(Fotmerly REC Power Disttibution Company Limited)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March, 2024
(All amounts in T lakh, unless stated otherwise)

35 Impairment on assets classified as held for sale

36

37

For the year ended

Fot the year ended

Bortopls 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Impairment expense - On assets classified as held for sale (8.91) 2.56
(8.91) 2.56
Refer note 17.2 for details
Tax expense
For the year ended | Fort the year ended

Particulars

- 31 March, 2024

31 March, 2023

Current tax

Tax pertaining to current year 3,610.48 5,191.83
Tax pertaining to cartlier years 188.26 (15.91)
Deferred tax expense/ (credit) 1,507.06 (519.54)

5,305.80 4,656.38

The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expense based on

domestic effective tax rate of at 25.168% (previous year 25.168%)

18,635.28

Accounting profit before income tax 20,269.80
At country’s statutory income tax rate of 25.168% 5,101.50 4,690.13
Adjustments in respect of taxes earlier years
(H)Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes 16.04 (17.84)
(i)Non-taxable incomes
(ii) Eatlier vear taxes 188.26 (15.91)
5,305.80 4,656.38

Basic/diluted earnings per share

s For the year ended | For the year ended

ferioiat 31 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023

Net profit for the year 14,964.00 13,978.90
Weighted average number of equity shares for EPS 85,500 85,500
Par value per share (in ) 10 10
Earnings per shate - Basic and diluted (in I) 17,501.75 16,349.60

)
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REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited
(Formerly REC Power Distribution Company Limited)

(All amounts in lakh, uniess stated otherwise)
Revenue from contracts with customers under Ind AS 115 are as follow:-

The Company is engaged in providing following services-

RECPDCL provides consultancy setvices in Power Sector to states/Union Territories under various central /state
Government schemes such as Third Party Inspection Agency (TPIA)/Project Management Agency (PMA)/Project
Management Consultancy (PMC)/ Project Implementing Agency (PIA) ete. under Deendayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti
Yojana(DDUGTY)/Integrated Power Development Scheme (IPDS)/Ptime Ministet Development Program (PMDP)/
Restructured Accelerated Power Development and Reforms Program (R-APDRP)/Backward Regions Grant Fund (BRGF)/
Revamped Distribution Sector Scheme (RDSS) and other state schemes. The major activities undertaken in these types of
projects include inspection of Village Electrification, Substation and Feeder inspection & Matetial inspection, Survey &
preparation of Detailed project teport, assisting DISCOMS in bid management, supetvision & monitoring of electrical
infrastructure work, assisting Distribution Companies (DISCOMs) in closure of the project, getting executed the electrical
infrastructure work ctc. Ministry of Power has appointed the Company as Bid Process Cootdinator (BPC) for Inter State
Transmission Systems across the country on Tatiff Based Competitive Mode. Some of the State Government has also
appointed the company as BPC for intra state transmission projects under TBCB route. The company is conducting the
bidding process for ISTS projects, starting from selection of qualified bidders to handing over of the Special Purpose
Vehicle to the lowest bidder. The company is also working in Smart Meteting Projects/ Smart Grid and Information
Technology (IT) projects/ National Feeder Monitoring Scheme (NFMS) as Project Implementing Agency (PIA)/Project
Management Agency (PMA). The company has been appointed Bid Process Coordinator (BPC) under Scheme for flexibility
in Generation and Scheduling of Thermal /- Hydro Power Stations through bundling with Renewable Energy and Storage
Power, 2022.

Significant management judgments on revenue recognition

Recognized amounts of contract tevenues and related receivables when the contract has been approved by the parties, in
writing, to the contracr, the parties to contract are committed to perform their respective obligations under the contract, and
the contract is legally enforceable. Revenue from the contracts recognized over the period of time as and when the
performance obligation is satisfied based on management's best estimates of each contract’s outcome and stage of
completion which is determined based on progress, efforts, cost incurred to date beat to the total estimated cost of the
transaction, time spend, service petformed (generally mentioned in the contracts with the customer) ot any other method
that management considered approptiate. When thete is uncertainty as to collectability, tevenue recognition is postponed
uniil such uncertainty is resolved.

Also, while allocating that transaction price to the specific performance obligations identified in the contract. The
transaction price is allocated to the performance obligations based on its relative standalone selling price, which generally is
not readily available, hence management estimates the standalone selling prices basis upon its experience and contractual
negotiations.

Segregation of revenue

RECPDCL's revenue mostly comes from core business of sale of services as consultancy (PMA/PMC; TPIA, Project
Implementation Agency, Bid Process Coordinator, Quality Control Projects in power sector and some turnkey projects of
Solar/TT implementation from projects within India). In case of execution of IT/Solar implementation projects revenue is
recognized at a point in time specifically when the control of goods/services is transferred to the customer. In case of the
selection of bidders/ developers for transmission projects put on tariff based bidding revenue is recognized at a point in
time when it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection of the professionil charges will be made. The total business
portfolio of RECPDCL includes various Central/State Govt. entities e.g. State Distribution Companies (DISCOM), Power
and Electricity Depastments of States/UTs, Central Public Sector Undertaking (CPSUs) and selected bidders in private &

public sectors.

In accordance with Ind AS 115, for disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts wi
on the basis of different type service provided by the company. For detail of disaggregation pl.j
from Opetation. ‘ '
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REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited
(Formerly REC Power Distribution Company Limited)

- (All amounts in ¥ lakh, unless stated otl;crwi;e)

Reconciliation of revenue recognized with contract price

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particular
31 Match, 2024 31 March, 2023
Contract price 35,782.02 28,484.41
Adjustments for:

Rebates and discounts 5 5
Revenue from contracts with customers 35,782.02 28,484.41
For detail of contract price pl. refer note n0.26 on Revenue from Operation.

Contract balances
Particulars As at e
31 Martch, 2024 31 March, 2023
Assets
Trade Receivables (net of provisions) 15,497.85 11,443.07
Contract assets

Contract assets™ 2,407.45 2,483.05

Cost of fulfillment carried forward** -
Contract liability

Contract Liability*¥* 2.918.11 700.82

Deferred income* sk

*Contract assets are the unbilled revenue that has been recognized due to satisfaction of the performance obligation, but

the invoicing of the same is pending.

**Cost of fulfililment relates to contract assets recognized cquivalent to the tecoverable costs incurred in fulfilling a contract
{contract related) with a customer , which generates or enhances the resources of the entity that will be used in satisfying the

future performance obligations.

##+Contract Liability is advance from custotner, where money has been received and performance obligations are not yet

satisfied.

st Deferred income are contract liabilities , where performance obligations are not yet satisfied.

Reconciliations of Contract assets

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particular

31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Opening balance 2,483.05 2,090.96
Invoices raised during the year (2,262.95) (1,913.55)
Contract assets recognized during the year 2,407.45 2,315.47
Reversal of previous year's contract assets (220.10) (9.83)
Closing balance 2407.45 2483.05
Reconciliations of Contract liability
Opening balance 700.82 9.45

- Revenue recognized during the year (700.82) -

Addition duting the year 2,918.11 691.37
Closing balance 2918.11 700.82

S T &
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REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited
(Formerly REC Power Distribution Company Limited)

(All amounts in T 1&1{1’1, unless stated othcrwis;)

Remaining performance obligations

As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Amount of the unsatisfied performance obligations (or 3,84,498.61 61,474.47

The remaining petformance obligation disclosure provides the aggtegate amount of the transaction price yet to be
recognized as at the end of the reporting period. It is expected that an amount of Rs. 43897.85 Lakh is expected to be
tecognized in next financial year. Remaining performance obligation estimates ate subject to change and are affected by
several factors, including terminations, changes in the scope of contracts, petiodic revalidations, adjustment for revenue that
has not materialized. The entity expects to satisfy the above performance obligations within the contracted terms.

Company has not incurred any cost for obtaining contracts except administrative cost required for preparation of offers and
the same is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Advance for deposit work:

UT of Jammu & Kashmir & UT of Ladakh through their respective company / department has appointed RECPDCL
(erstwhile REC Power Distribution Company Limited) as a Project Implementing Agency (PIA) for design, enginecring,
procurement, supply, erection, testing and commissioning of all the matetial and setvices works to be taken-up for execution
of disttibution work under RAPDRP, IPDS, PMDP (U) PMDP-15, Smart Metering on nomination basis, as per actual cost
to be discovered through compettive biddings. RECPDCL has also been appointed as material procurement agency under
Saubhagya and DDUGJY Schemes for north castern states by REC Limited. Fusther Chandigarh Electricity Department
(CED) has appointed RECPDCL as implementing agency for installation of smart meters and SCADA and for laying the
underground cable work., The funds reccived for disbursement to various agencies under the above stated
schemes/departments are kept in a separate bank account (saving account). The undisbursed funds for the scheme
including interest earned thereto are classified under “Advance for Deposit Work” under the head “Other Financial
Liabilities (Current)”.

During the year, interest earned of ¥ 895.69 lakh (Previous year ¥ 1238.00 lakh) has been taken to advance for deposit work
account. Further, during the year, an amount of T 220.73 lakh (Previous year T 831.65 lakh) has been refunded back to MoP
out of the total interest on advance for deposit work.

The movement of Advance for deposit work is explained as under:

For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulats
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Opening Balance 10734.32 10642.28
Add: Amount received during the year 49,610.86 51,409.56
Less: Amount refunded to Govt. duting the year (3,698.77)
Less: Disbursement during the year (57,462.22) (47,618.75)
Closing Balance 2,882.96 10,734.32

The movement of interest on Advance for deposit work is explained as under:

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
31 Magch, 2024 31 March, 2023
Opening balance 1,232:29 825.94
Add: Interest earned during the year 895.70 1,238.00
Less: Interest refunded during the year (220.73) (831.65)
Closing Balance 1,907.26 B 23 2. 29
S T,




REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited
(Fogmerly REC Power Distribution Company Limited)

(Allamounts in T lakh, unless stated otherwise) — =
40  Government fund for schemes

11 kV Rural Feeder Monitoting Scheme is being implemented by the Company, sanctioned under Power System Development Fund
(PSDF) on Pan India basis on the behalf of Ministty of Power- Gol. The sole objective of the scheme is to monitor quality & quantity
parameter of rural power supply across the country. Under the scheme, Modems/DCUs are being installed on 11 kV Outgoing Rural,
Agriculture and Mixed (i.c. Rural + Agriculture) feeder meters on such 66/33 kV incoming Feeder from whete such 11 kV feeder are
emanating. The work includes supply, installation, commissioning of Modems & integration with Central MDAS with Operation &
Maintenance of Modems/DCUs for a year of 5 years” post Go-Live. The funding of scheme is being done through two sources, mainly
_ from PSDF and through DDUGJY enabling activity.

The undisbursed funds for the scheme including intetest earned thereto ate classified Tnder “Government Fund for Schesmes” under the
head “Other Financial Liabilities (Current)” and recoverable fund (if any) is classified under “Recoverable from Ministry of Power,
Government of India” under the head “Other Financial Assets (Current)”.

During the year, interest catned of ¥ 32.46 lakh (previous year ¥ 6.33 lakh) has been credited to the Government fund for the scheme.

41 Related party transactions
In accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard — 24 the names of the related partics where control/ability to exercise
significant influcnce exists, along with the aggtegate amount of transactions and year end balances with them as identified and certified by
the management are given below:

a.  Details of related parties:

Description of relationship Names of related parties

Ultimate holding Company Power Finance Corporation Limited

Holding company REC Limited (Formerly Rural Electrification Corporation Limited)
Society registered for undertaking CSR REC Foundation

activities

Subsidiaries Companies Mandar Transmission Limited (w.c.f. 26 March, 2018) *

(existing on the date of closing)
Koderma Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 19 March, 2018) *
Dumka Transmission Limited (w.c.f. 25 March, 2018) *
Chandi] Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 14 March, 2018) *
Jalpura Khutja Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 28 April, 2023 to 5 Aprl, 2024) **
Kallam Transco Limited (w.e.f. 15 September, 2023 to 5 April, 2024) **

Meesut Shamli Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 14 December, 2022 to 6 April, 2024) **

Luhd Powet Transmission Limited (w.c.f. 28 Octobet, 2022)
NERES XVI Power Transmission Limited (w.c.f. 10 January, 2023)
Rajasthan Part 1 Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 30.04.2023)
Shongtong Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 14.06.2023)
Khavda IV C Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 27.09.2023)
Khavda IV-E2 Power Transmission Limited (w.c.f. 05.10.2023)
Khavda IVA Powet Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 09.10.2023)
Khavda V A Power Transmission Limited (w.c.f. 10.10.2023)
Rajasthan IV A Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 10.10.2023)
Rajasthan IV C Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 11.10.2023)
Rajasthan IV H 1 Power Transmission Limired (w.e.f. 13.10.2023)
Rajasthan IV E Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 14.10.2023)
NERGS-1 Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 13.12.2023)
Tumkur-II REZ Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 13.12.2023)
Kankani Power Transmisison Limited (w.e.f. 18.12.2023)
ERES-XXXXIX Powes Transmission Limited (w.c.f, 27.03.2024)

* These companies are under process of strike off.
** Kallam Transco Limited & Jalpura Khurja Power Transmission Limited transferred to the successful bidder on 05.04.2024 and Meerut
Shamli Power Transmission Limited transferred to the successful bidder on 06.04.2024.

Subsidiaries Companies KPS1 Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 6 May, 2022 to 20 April 2023)
(transferred during the Financial year)

Beawar Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 27 Apxil, 2022 to 20.09.2023)
Ramgarh IT Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 20 April, 2022 to 26.10.2023) L[’ E
: . PR : .ﬁmhcammﬁ@é

Bidar Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 8 June, 2020 to 09 Februray 2024) ;%? Nek/iaitd g 5
Sikar Khetti Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 6 May, 2022 to 09 Februray 2024) %
Dhule Power Trapsmission Limited (w.e.f. 8 June, 2023 to 09 Februray 2024)
Ishanagar Powet Transmission Limired (w.e.f. 9 June, 2023 to 09 Februray 2024)
Karera Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 14 June, 2023 to 09 Februray 2024)
Pachora Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 20 July, 2023 to 14 Februray 2024)




REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited

Key management personnel (KMP)
The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of REC Limited, 2 Govt. of India Enterptise. The Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
ate employees of the Holding Company (REC Limited) deployed on part time basis. The details of such Key Managerial Personnel are as

(Formerly REC Power Distribution Company Limited)

(All amounts in T lakh, unless stated otherwise)”

follows: ~
Tenure Date of
Name Designation Appointment
From To

Sh. Vivek Kumar Dewangan Chairman & Director 17 May, 2022 17 May, 2022
Sh. Rahul Dwivedi Chief Exccutive Officer |14 November, 2022 |30 June, 2023 14 November, 2022
Sh. Rajesh Kumar Chief Exccative Officer” |01 July 2023 01 July 2023
Sh. Sanjay Kumar Director 16 March, 2020 16 March, 2020
Sh. VK. Singh Director 12 June, 2020 12 June, 2020
Sh.. Ajoy Choudhury Director 25 March, 2019 31 January, 2024 25 March, 2019
Sh. T S C Bosh Director 01 February, 2024 01 February, 2024

Sh. Mohan Lal Kurmawat
Sh. Ch Lakshman Acharyulu
Sh. Sahab Narain

Sh. Ch Lakshman Acharyulu

Company Sccretary
Company Sccretary
Cro
CFO

13 March, 2007

16 October, 2023
26 September, 2021
01 July, 2023

15 October, 2023

30 June, 2023

13 March, 2007

16 October, 2023
26 September, 2021
01 July, 2023

‘Transactions with Holding Company and KMP are as under:

Society registered Koyt anapement
Yeat ended Holding Company | fot undertaking
CSR activities RECCEEt
(i) Transactions during the year
Services rendered Year ended 31 March, 255.93 ~ -
2024
Year ended 31 March, 354.03 ~ -
2023
Year ended 31 March, 2,527.58 B -
B eived £ 4 2024
Services received from related party Year ended 31 March, 2,440.66 ) _
2023
Remuneration to KMP's (thtough Holding Year ended 31 March, - - 152.47
Company) 2024
Year ended 31 March, ~ ~ 114.91
2023
Interest income from investment in tax Year ended 31 Match, 370.54 - -
free bonds 2024
Year ended 31 Match, 369.52 - -
2023
Dividend on equity shares Year ended 31 March, 2,340.14 ~ -
2024
Year ended 31 March, 2,744.56 - -
2023
(ii) Outstanding Balances at yearend |
Amount payables Year ended 31 March, 695.89
2024/ B )
Year ended 31 March, 669.79
2023 B B
Amount receivables Year ended 31 Match, 116.44
2024 B
Year ended 31 March, 146.22
2023 )
Non-current/Curtent investment Year ended 31 Match, 4,667.02
(Investment in tax free bonds, NCD's & 2024 :
Staggered papers incl. of accrued interest) Year ended 31 March, 4,666.01

2023




REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited
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(All-amounts in T lakh, unless stated otherwisc)

With respect to the key management petsonnel, disclosure has been given for those relatives with whom the Company has made
transactions during the year. (if any)

Key management personnel remuneration includes the following expenses:

For the year ended For the year ended

31 Mazch, 2024 31 March, 2023

Shott-term employee benefits ' 129.65 89.12
Post-employment benefits 22.82 2579
Termination benefits - -
Total remuneration 152.47 114.91
Note:

As provisions for. gratuity and leave benefits are made for the Company as a whole, the amounts pertaining to the Key management
petsonnel are not specifically identified and hence are not included above.

c.  Transactions with subsidiaries during the financial year 2023-24 are as under:

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March, 2024 31 Match, 2023

(i) Dumka Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 25 March, 2018)
Interest income -
Reimbugsement/ expenses reimbursement - -
Investment made N -

(i1) Chandil Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 14 March, 2018)
Interest income . " -
Rcimbugsctncnt/ expenses reimbursement - N
Investment rade - -

(iii) Mandar Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 26 March, 2018)
Interest income * N
Reimbursement/ expenses reimbursement - S
Investment made - -

(iv) Koderma Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 19 March, 2018)
Interest income N -
Reimbutsement,/ expenses teimbursement - &
Investment made - =

(v) Bidat Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 8 June, 2020 to 09th February 2024)

Consultancy fee 1,500.00

Interest income 8.36 0.07
Reimbursement,/ expenses reimbursement 79.90 10,28
Investment made B -
Sale of investments 5.00 ~

(vi) Sikar Khetri Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 06 May, 2022 to 09th Febrary 2024)

Consultancy fee 1,500.00

Intetest income 8.36 3.47
Reimbutsement/ expenses teimbursement 67.18 67.99
Investment made - 5.00
Sale of investments - 5.00 -

(vii) KPS 1 Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 6 May, 2022 to 20th April 2023)
Consultancy fee 1,101.52 -
Tnterest income ' 0.60 2.35
Reimbutsement/ expenses reimbursement 20.70 59.34
Investment made - 5.00
Sale of investments 5.00 -
(viii) Ramgath I Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 20 April, 2022 to 26 October 2023)

Consultancy Fees 1,500.00 -
Interest income 4.72

Reimbutsement/ expenses reimbursement 41.13
Investment made -
Sale of investments 5.00




REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited
(Formerly REC Power Disttibution Company Limited)

(All'amounts in" T lakh, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023

(ix) Beawar Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 27 April, 2022 to 20 September, 2023 )

Consultancy Fees 1,500.00

Interest income 4.00 3.66
Reimbursement/ expenses reimbursement - 37.65 - 71.78
Investment made - 5.00
Sale of investments 5.00 -

(x) Khavda ITI-D Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 25 April, 2022~ Striked off)

Interest income .
(xi) Luhri Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 28 October, 2022)

Interest income 6.85 1.16
Reimbursement/ expenses reimbussement 43.61 48.97
Advance received from patties -
Investment made - 5.00
(xii) Meerut Shamli Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 14 December, 2022 to 6 April, 2024)

Consultancy Fees 72.39

Interest income 5.64 0.51
Reimbursement/ _expenses reimbursement 42.20 42.77
Investment made - 5.00

Sale of investments .

(xiii) NERES XVI Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 10 January, 2023)

Interest income 5.25 022
Reimbursement/ expenses reimbursement 56.75 18.54
Investment made 5.00
(xiv) Rajasthan Part 1 Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 30 April 2023)
Interest income 3.39 -
Reimbursement/ expenses reimbussement 53.49 ~
Sale of investments -
Investment made 5.00 -
(xv) Shongtong Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 14 June, 2023)
Interest income 2.34 -
Reimbursement/ expenses treimbursement 45.66 -
Sale of investments -
Investment made 5.00 -
(xvi) Khavda IVC Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 27 September, 2023)
Interest income 1.09 -
Reimbursement,/ cxpenses reimbussement 33.95 -
Sale of investments .
Tnvestment made 5.00 -
(xvii) Khavda IV E2 Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 5 October, 2023)
Intetest income 0.82 -
Reimbutsement/ expenses reimbutsement 27.39 -
Sale of investments ~
Investment made 5.00 -
(xix) Khavda IVA Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 9 October, 2023)
Interest income ) . 1.01 -
Reimbursement/ expenses reimbussement 44.87 -
Sale of investments -
Investment made 5.00 B
(xx) Rajasthan IVA Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 10 October, 2023)
Intesest income 0.96 -
Reimbutsement/ expenses reimbussement 33.72 -

Sale of investments B
Investment made

(xxi) Rajathan IVC Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 11 October, 2023)
Interest income
Reimbutsement/ expenses reimbussement
Sale of investments
Investment made




REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited -
(Formerly REC Power Distribution Company Limited)

(All amounts in T Jakh, unless stated otherwise)

(xxii) Rajathan IV H1 Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 13 October, 2023)

Intetest income 1.22
Reimbursement/ expenses reimbursement 42.34
Sale of investments
Investment made 5.00
(xxiii) Rajathan IVE Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 14 October, 2023)
Interest income 0.94 -
Reimbursement/ expenses reimbutsement — e 31.33 e
Sale of investments =
Investment made 5.00 -
(xxiv) Khavda VA Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 10 October, 2023)
Intetest income 1.06 -
Reimbursement/ expenses reimbursement 34.88 -
Sale of investments
Investment made ' 5.00 -
(xxv) NERG-1 Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 13 December, 2023)
Interest income 0.81 -
Reimbursement/ expenses reimbursement 28.99 S
Sale of investments -
Investment made 5.00 -
(xxvi) Tumkur Il Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 13 December, 2023)
Interest income 0.32 B
Reimbursement/ expenses reimbursement 16.42 o
Sale of invesumnents .
Tovestment madc 5.00 -
(xxvii) ERES XXXIX Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 27 March, 2024)
Interest income 0.04 -
Reimbursement/ expenses reimbursement 5.12

Sale of investments
Investment made - -

(xxviii) Jalpura Khurja Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 28 April, 2023 to 5 April, 2024)

Consultancy Fees 250.00 -
Interest income 3.52 -
Reimbursement/ expenses reimbursement 69.31

Sale of investments -
Investment made 5.00 -

(xxix) Dhule Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 8 June, 2023 to 9 February, 2024)
Consultancy Fees 597.76 -
Interest income 2.03 -
Reimbursement/ expenses reimbursement 53.98 -
Sale of investments 5.00 -
Investment made 5.00 -
(xxx) Ishanagar Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 9 June, 2023 to 9 February, 2024)
Consultancy Fees ‘ 593.07 -
Interest income 2.03 -
Reimbursement/ expenses reimbursement 54.24 -
Sale of investments ’ 5.00 -
Investment made 5.00 -
(xxxi) Katera Power Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 14 June, 2023 to 09 February, 2024)

Consultancy Fees 827.07 -
Interest income 2.04 -
Reimbursement/ expenses seimbursement 54,70 S
Sale of investments 5.00 -
[nvestment made 5.00 -

(xxxii) Pachora Powet Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 20 July, 2023 to 14 February, 2024)
Consultancy Fees
Interest income .
Reimbursement/ expenses reimbutsement
Sale of investments
Investment made

(xxxiii) Kallam Transco Limited (w.e.f. 15 September, 2023 to 5 April, 2024)
Consultancy Fees
Interest income
Reimbursement/ expenses reimbursement
Sale of investments

Investment made
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(All amounts in ¥ lakh, unless stated otherwisc)

Outstanding balances w.r.t. subsidiaries are as under

As at As at
Receivable from subsidiaries/ (Payable to subsidiaries) 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Chandil Transmission Limited 0.25 254.43
Dumbka Transmission Limited 0.25 248.24
Mandar Transmission Limited 0.25 222.50
Koderma Transmission Limited 0.25 228 18
Bidar Transmussion Limited - 10.08
Sikar Khetri Transmission Limited - 67.30
KPS1 Transmission Limited - 58.35
Ramgarh 11 Transmission Limited - 69.60
Beawar Transmission Limited 70.94
Luhti Power Transmission Limited 107.43 48.15
Meerut Shamli Power Transmission Limited 184.98 43.29
NERES XVT Power Transmussion Limited 91.35 18.76
FERES XXXIX Power Transmission Limited 5.16 -
Jalpura Khurja Power Transmission Limited 380.56 -
Rajasthan Part 1 Power Transmission Limited 66.79 -
Shongtong Power Transmission Limited 56 46 .
Khavda [V A Power Transmission Limited 54.15|
Khavda IV C Power Transmission Limited 41.36 B
Khavda IV E2 Power Transmission Limited 33.30 -
Khavda V-A Power Transmission Limited 42.41 -
Rajasthan TVA Power Transmission Limited 40.94 -
Rajasthan TVC Power Transmission Limited 33.54 -
Rajasthan IV E Power Transmission Limited 38.09 -
Rajasthan IV H1 Power Transmsision Limited 51.39 S
Kallam Transco Limited 041.10 -
NERGS-1 Power Transmission Limited 35.21
Tumkue-1T REZ Power Transmission Limited 19.81
Kankani Power Transmission Limited 0.05 |
1,925.08 1,339.82
Receivable from subsidiaries/ (Payable to subsidiaries)
Khavda II-D Transmission Limited - {1.79)
1,925.08 1,338.03
As at As a_t_:
Investments in SPVs 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023 |
Chandi! Transmission Limited E 5.00 |
Dumka Transmission Limited 5.00 |
MandarT'ransmission Limited 5.00
KodermaTransmisston Limited - 5.00
Bidar Transmission Limited - 5.00
Beawar Transmission Limited - 5.00
[Khavda TI-ID Transmission Limited 5.00
KPS1 Transmission Limited 5.00
Sikar Khetri Transmission Limited 5.00
Ramgarh II Transmission Limited - 5.00
Luhti Power Transmission Limited 5.00 5.00
Mecerut Shamli Power Transmission Limited 5.00 5.00
NERES XVI Power Transmission Limited 5.00 5.00
Jalpura Khurja Power Transmission Limited 5.00
Rajasthan Part 1 Power Transmission Limited 5.00 -
Shongtong Power Transmission Limited 5.00 -
Kallam Transco Limited 5.00 -




REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited
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(All amounts in ¥ lakh, unless stated otherwise)

Khavda IV C Power Transmission Limited

- Khavda TVA Power Transmission Limited

Khavda TV-E2 Power Transmission Limited
Khavda V A Power Transmission Limited
Rajasthan IV A Powet Transmission Limited
Rajasthan IV C Power Transmission Limited
Rajasthan IV E Power Transmission Limited
Rajasthan IV H1 Power Transmission Limited
Kankani Power Transmisison Limited
NERGS-I Power Transmission Limited
Tumkur-II REZ Power Transmission Limited

5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00

90.00

42

Advances/dues from directors & other key officers of the company:

Designation of officer

As at 31 March, 2024

Maximum amount
outstanding for the

As at 31 March, 2023

Maximum amount
outstanding for the

year ended 31 year ended 31
March, 2024 Match, 2023
Chairman NIL NIL NIL NIL
Company Secretary NIL NI, NIL NIL

Employee benefit obligations

Defined contribution plans

The Company makes contributions to the Provident I'und for all cligible employees. Under the plan, the Company is required to contribute
a specified percentage of payroll costs. Accordingly, the Company has recognized ¥ 43.09 lakh as expensc in the statement of profit and
loss during the current year (Previous Year ended 31 March, 2023 ¥ 36.98 lakh).

" Other long term employee benefit plans

Leave encashment (Compensated absence) - The Employees are entitled for Leave encashment after completion of one year of service
only and amount is paid in full, at the time of separation. The liability for the same is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation basis.
The additional expenses recognised during the year is Rs. 9.22 Lakh (Previous Year Rs. () 10.73 Lakh)
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(All amounts in ¥ lakh, unless stated otherwise)
43 Financial instruments

i) Financial instraments by categoty measured at amortized cost:

As at As at

Particulars 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023

Financial assets

Investments* - 7,671.41. 7,671.41
Trade receivables 15,497.85 11,443.07
Cash and cash equivalents 21,649.89 969.87
Other bank balances 22,430.01 32,770.21
Other financial assets (Note 7 & Note 14) 5,292.97 10,186.26
Total 72,542.13 63,040.82
Financial liabilities
Borrowings N .
Trade payable 9,051.31 4,167.59
Other financial liabilites (Note 20 & Note 24} 8,418.37 15,804.93
Total 17,469.68 19,972.52

*

Aggregate fair value of investment in tax free bonds / NCD's is ¥ 8880.98 lakh ( 31 March, 2023 : ¥ 9039.03 lakh)

ii) Fair values hierarchy
The Company does not have any financial assets or financial liabilities carried at fair value.

44 Financial risk management

i) Risk management

The Company is exposed to vatious risks in relation to financial instruments. The Company’s financial assets and liabilities by
category are summarised in Note 43. The main types of risks are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

The Company’s risk management is coordinated in close co-operation with the Board of Directors, and focuses on securing the
Company’s shott to medium term cash flows. The Company does not engage in trading of financial assets for speculative

purposes.

A) Credit risk

a) Credit sk rating
The entity assesses and manages credit risk of financial assets based on following categories arrived on the basi
inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets. '
A: Low credit risk on financial reporting date
B: Moderate credit tisk
C: High credit risk

f assumptions,
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The entity provides for expected ctedit loss based on the following;:

(All amounts in T lakh, unless stated otherwise)

Asset entity

Basis of categorization

Provision for expected credit loss

Low credit risk

Cash and cash equivalents, other bank
balances, loans, investments and other
financial assets

12 month expected credit loss

Contract asset and trade receivable

Lifedme expected credit loss

Assets are wtitten off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as litigation of debtor decided against the entity

ot funds not allocated against grant. The entity continues to engage with parties whose balances are written off and attermpts to
enfotce repayment. The entty has written off certain irtecoverable debts.

Credit risk assets are as follows:

Credit rating

Particulars

A: Low credit risk

Cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, investments and other financial

assets

B: Medium credit risk

Trade receivables

C: High credit risk

Trade receivables

Credit risk exposure

Provision for expected credit losses
The entity provides for expected credit losses for following financial assets —
31 March, 2024
Estimated gross Expected Carrying amount
Particulars carrying amount credit losses net of impairment
at default provision
Investments 7,671.41 ~ 7,671.41
Cash and cash equivalents 21,649.89 - 21,649.89
Other bank balances 22,430.01 - 22,430.01
Trade receivables 21,465.15 (5,967.30) 15,497.85
Other financial assets (Note 7 & Note 14) 5,341.82 (48.85) 5,292.97
31 March, 2023
Estimated gross Expected Carrying amount
Particulars carrying amount credit losses net of impairment
at default provision
Investments 7,671.41 - 7,671.41
Cash and cash equivalents 969.87 - 969.87
Other bank balances 32,770.21 - 32,770.21
Trade receivables 2241343 (10,970.36) 11,443.07
Other financial assets (Note 7 & Note 14) 10,235.11 (48.85) 10,186.26
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(All amounts in T laich, unless stated othe;wisc)

(i) Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach
31 March, 2024
Particalars Gross carrying| Expected loss Expected credit Catrying amount
value tate loss (provision) | (net of impairment)
_| < 6 months 8,651.86 3.18% 275,08 8,376.78
6 months - 1 year 2,976.28 20.44% 608.44 2,367.84
1 year - 2 yeat 5,010.33 24.83% 1,244.20 3,766.13
2 year - 3 year 880.23 46.96% 413.33 466.90
>3 Yedrs 3,946.45 86.82% 3,426.25 520.20
Total 21,465.15 27.80% 5,967.30 15,497.85
31 March, 2023
Particulars Gross carrying| Expected loss Expected credit .
value rate loss (provision) Carmng al:nount
(net of impairment)
< 6 months 9,738.31 15.08% 1,468.86 8,269.45
6 months - 1 year 3,120.84 3517% 1,097.73 2,023.11
1 year - 2 year 2,131.89 62.87% 1,340.35 791.54
2 year - 3 year 1,630.71 89.96% 1,466.94 163.77
>3 Years 5,634.66 99.32% 5,596.48 38.18
Total 22,256.41 49.29% 10,970.36 11,286.05

Note: The entity has measured the éxpected credit loss on trade receivables using simplified approach on lifetime basis. For the
same the Company has used the practical expedient available under Ind AS 109 and computed the expected ciedit foss using the
provision Metrix. In calculation, the quantum of irade payables in respect of back to back contracts shall be set off against the
respective project trade receivables of respective years, Further additional impairment loss also cyeated in such cases where
specific information is available to company in relation to detetioration of quality of an asset.

Reconciliation of loss provision — Trade receivables

Reconciliation of loss allowance Amount

Loss allowance on 1 April, 2022 8,271.99
Provisions utilized (used against bad debts) duting the year (22.45)
Provision created during the year 2,720.82

Loss allowance on 31 March, 2023 10,970.36
Provisions utilized (used against bad debts) during the year (2,824.44)
Provision created / (reversed) duting the year (2,178.62)
Loss allowance on 31 March, 2024 5,967.30
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(All amounts in 2 lakh, unless stated otherwise)
Liquidity risk
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors. The Company manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves, back-up facilities such as deposits and by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows,

and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s
liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.

Maturities of financial liabilities

All the financial liabilities of the Company ate current in nature and are maturing within 12 months petiod, except for earnest
money deposits and Performance bank guarantee which are recoverable in more than 12 months petiod. However expected date
of the same is not determinable.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because. of changes in market
prices. It comprises of currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

Currency risk:
The Company does not have any foreign currency transactions, hence, it is not exposed to curtency tisk.

Interest rate risk
In current financial year there is no credit facility availed by the company.

For the year ended| For the year ended
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023

Particular

Floating rate borrowings (-0.5% Change in interest rate) 0.00 0.00
Floating rate borsowings (+0.5% Change in interest rate) - -

Price risk:
The Company does not have any financial instrument which exposes it to price risk.

Capital Management

“The Company’s capital includes issued share capital and all other distributable reserves (except for specific restricted reserves).

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise shareholder value and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Company does not have any borrowings and presently all its capital needs are met by
capital or shareholders only. ‘
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(All amounts in X lakh, unless stated otherwise)

As at As at
46 Contingent labilities and commitments 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
i) Contingent Liabilities (to the extent not provided for)
a) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt
Disputed tax demands
(a) Income tax demand for AY 2017-18 29.86 29.86
(b) Income tax demand against notice U/s 245 of
Income Tax Act for AY 2018-19 - -~ 0.01
(¢) Income tax demand against notice U/s 245 of
Tncome Tax Act for AY 2019-20 - 1,462.13
(d) GST demand aganinst notice U/s 73(4) of GST for
FY 2017-18 8.24 -
Others
(a) Qutstanding claims of contractors pending in
arbitration and courts 2,732.39 2,670.95
2,770.49 4,162.95

(A) The amount referred in (a) above are against the demands raised by the Income Tax Department for AY 2017-18 against which
an appeal has been filed before CIT (Appeals) and 20% of demand is deposited in FY 19-20 for T 5.97 lakh. So the company is
contesung this tax demands and the management believes that its posidon will likely be upheld in the appellate process.
Further, the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position
and results of operations.

(B) The amount referred in (d) above, is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of
business. The Management reasonably expects that these legal actions, when uldmately concluded and determined, will not
have a material and adverse effect on the Company’s sesults of operations or financial condition.

() A commercial suit is filed against the company ( RECPDCL) & Ors by Ms. Sumotek Tnnovation Pvr. Ltd (“Sumotck”) before

the High Court of Judicature at Bombay. RECPDCL has been marked as Defendant No 1 in the suit. Brihan Mumbai Electric
Supply & Transport Undertaking (BEST) is Defendant No 2 and Adani Transmission Limited is Defendant No 3. Tt has been
stated in the suit that a patent was registered in the name of one Girish M Bachate (“Patentee”) in the name and title head of
'Pre-paid- Post Paid Electricity Supply Machine’, which was registered as Patent, number 208216. The Patentec has
subsequently assigned the same in favouwr of the Petitioner. The pedtion alleges that floating of the tender No.
RECPDCL/BD/e-tender/20222023/73759N (by RECPDCL on behalf of BEST) for appointment of advanced metering
infrastructure service provider for implementing prepaid smart metering project allegedly infringes patent in the name of
Patentee (now assigned to the Petitioner) as the technology and process of developing the smatt meters covered under the
tender is similar and identical to the Pre-paid Post Paid Electricity Supply Machine, which was patented to the Patentee. Adani
Transmission Limited has emerged as the successful bidder in the said tender. Therefore, claims have been made by the
Petitioner against RECPDCL, BEST and Adani Transmission Limited inter-alia for payment of Rs. 10806.60 Lakh (towards
royalty) + Rs. 2106.33 Lakh (against damages) along with interest and othet chatges ete. along with other reliefs.
Initially, RECPDCL had been appointed as project implementing agency by BEST for smatt meteting project and the tender on
behalf of best has been floated accordingly by the RECPDCL for selection of suitable bidder for execution of the project.
RECPDCL was only acting as an agent in the project and later on BEST has removed RECPDCL as PIA for the project and
accordingly no such lability shall arise on RECPDCL due to this commercial suit and figure as mentioned above not shown in
contingent liability.

Qutstanding claims of contractors pending in ashitration and coutts includes the followings: -

1) Powet Grid Corporation of India Limited had filed a Claim against RECPDCL (Respondent No 2), Samalkot Power Limited
(Respondent No 3) and Spectrum Power Generation Limited (Respondent No 4) for Rs. 1827.94 Lacs (towards acquisition
cost) of Vemagiri Transmission System Limited + Rs. 843.01 Lacs (from date of acquisition and interest), on joint and/ox
several basis. The matter presently is in final stages of argument.

ii.) Powertech Engineers has filed a claim of Rs. 61.44Lacs against the liquidated damages deducted by the RECPDCL along
with interest. The deduction of lquidated damages is as per contract terms, The matter presently is being contested before
MSME Facilitation Council Meerut and further order is still awaited.

O
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ii) Commitments (to the extent not provided for)

(A)) The company submitted petformance bank gurantee to its service recipient as per tequirement of th
performance bank guarantees as on 31.03.2024 is Rs. 1521.27 Lakh (Previous year Rs. 2979.25 L.
are secured against cusrent assets excluding earmarked balances for deposit works and government
Note 13 - Other bank balances.
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(B) The outstanding commitment on account of CSR activities which are sanctined ptior to/ duting

Lakh {previous vear Re. 165.58 Lakh).
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(All amounts in ¥ lakh, unless stated otherwise)
Impairment of non financial assets:
In the opinion of management, thete is no impairment of the non financial assets of the Company in terms of IND AS-36.
Accordingly, no provision for impairment loss has been made.

Leases

The Company has leases for office building, warchouses, office equipment and related facilities. With the exception of short-term
leases and leases of low-value underlying assets, each lease is reflected on the balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability.
Variable lease payments which do not depend on an index or a rate are excluded from the initial measurement of the lease liability
and right of use assets. The Company classifies its right-of-use assets in a consistent manner to its property, plant and equipment.

Each lease generally imposes a restriction that, unless there is a contractual tight for the Company to sublease the asset to another
party, the right-of-use asset can only be used by the Company. Some leases contain an option to extend the lease for a further term.
The Company is prohibited from selling or pledging the underlying leased assets as security. For leases over office buildings and other
premises the Company must keep those properties in a good state of repair and return the properties in their original condition at the
end of the lease. Further, the Company is required to pay maintenance fees in accordance with the lease contracts.

The statement of Profit and Loss shows the following amounts relating

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Short-term leases 518.05 563.79
Total 518.05 563.79

T'otal cash outflow:

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars

31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Short-term leases 382.07 462.13
Total 382.07 462.13

The company has total balance commitment for short term lease of Rs. 135.98 Lakh as at 31st March 2024 (Previous year Rs. 106.66
Lakh).

Extension and termination options
The Company has lease contracts for "office block and work sites” which are used for regular operations of its business. Thete are
several lease contracts that include extension and termination options which are further discussed below.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by
management to provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Company’s business needs. Management
exercises significant judgment in determining whether these extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be exercised.

The Company has benefited from the use of hindsight for determining the lease term when considering options to extend and
terminate leases.

Critical judgments in determining the lease term
In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option, ot not exercise a termination option. Extension options (ot periods after termination options) are only included in
the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (o not terminated).

The assessment is reviewed if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs which
that is within the control of the lessee. 1
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31 Maxch, 2024 31 Mazxch, 2023 Analysis
° 0

. Numerator |Denominator | Ratios [Numerator [Denominator | Ratios /0 Rea.son 0
Ratio Vatiance |Vatiance
Curtrent Ratio 66,291.01 23,807.48| 2.78 48,762.48 2392926 2.04 36.64 |refet pt. (a)
Return on Equity Ratio 14,964.00 50,405.32 0.30 13,978.90 38,476.21 0.36 (18.29)
Trade Receivables Turnover
Ratio 35,782.02 13,470.46| 2.66 28,484.41 10,753.85]....2.65 0.29
Trade Payables Turnover Ratio]  18,644.69 6,609.45| 2.82 7,242.92 3,907.71] 1.85 52.19 |refer pt. (b)
Net capital Turnover Ratio 35,782.02 42,483.53| (.84 28,484.41 24,833.22) 1.15 (26.57) |refer pt. (¢}
Net Profit Ratio 14,964.00 35,782.02| 0.42 13,978.90 28484.411 0.49 (14.78)
Return on Capital emploved 20,487.88 56,717.25] 0.36 18,653.21 44,093.38| 0.42 (14.61)

1. Current ratio - Numerator includes current assets and Denominator includes current liabilides

2. Return on Equity ratio - Numerator includes Net profit after taxes and Denominator includes average shareholders equity.

3. Trade receivable turnover ratio - Numerator includes Revenue from operations and Denominator includes average trade receivables,

4. Trade payable turnover ratio - Numetatot includes Cost of setvices tendered and Denominator includes average trade payables.

5. Net capital turnover tatio - Numerator includes Revenue from operations and Denominator includes working capital (Current Assets -
Cutrent Liabilities).

6. Net profit ratio - Numerator includes profit after tax and Denominator includes Revenue from operations.

7. Return on capital employed - Numerator includes catning before interest and taxes and Denominator includes capital employed
(Tangible net worth plus total debt plus deferred tax liabilities).

Reasons for variation more than 25%

(a) The cutreat ratin has been increased due to increase in current asset (increased mainly due to increase in cash & cash equivalents and
trade receivables).

(b) The trade payable ratio has been improved due to significant pay out of trade payables during the financial year.

(c¢) The net capital mrnover ratio has been reduced due to incresae in current assets. The current asset mainly increased due to increase in

cash & cash equivalents and trade receivables.
Other notes

There were thirteen opening SPVs , namely Chandil Transmission Limited, Dumka Transmission Limited., Koderma Transmission
Limited, Mandar Transmission Limited, KPS1 Transmission Limited, Beawar Transmission Limited, Ramgarh 11 Transmission Limited,
Bidar Transmission Limited, Sikar Khetri Transmission Limited, Khavda II-D Transmission Limited, Luhti Power Transmission Limited,
Meerut Shamli Power Transmission Limited, & NERES XVI Power Transmission Limited.

During the financial year 2023-24, twenty number of SPVs namely Rajasthan Part I Power Transmission Limited, Shongtong Power
Transmission, Jalpura Kurja Power Transmission Limited, Kallam Transco Limited, Khavda IV C Power Transmission Limited, Khavda
IV-E2 Power Transmission Limited, Khavda IV A Power Transmission Limited, Khavda V A Power Transmission Limited, Rajasthan IV
A Power Transmission Limited, Rajasthan IV C Power Transmission Limited, Rajasthan IV H 1 Power Transmission Limited, Rajasthan
IV E Power Transmission Limited, NERGS - I Power Transmission Limited, Tumkur - II REZ Power Tranénnission Limited, Kankani
Power Transmission Limited, ERES-XXXXIX Power Transmission Limited, Dhule Power Transmission limited, Ishanagar Power
Transmission Limited, Karera Power Transmission Limited & Pachora Power Transmission Limited have been incorporated.

Furthet, duting FY 2023-24 nine number of SPVs naﬁlely KPS1 Transmission Limited, Beawar Transmission Limited, Ramgarh II
Transmission Limited, Bidar Transmission Limited, Sikar Khetri Transmission Limited, Dhule Power Transmission Limited, Ishanagar
Power Transmission Limited, Karera Power Transmission Limited & Pachota Power Transmission Limited have been transferred to the
successful bidders and one number SPVs namely Khavda IT-D Transmission Limited has been strike off from the books of the company.

There ate twenty three SPVs as at 31 March, 2024. Out of these 4 number SPVs of namely Chandil Ts#

Transmission Limited., Koderma Transmission Limited & Mandar Transmission Limited are under proce
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Government of Jharkhand vide its letter dated 21 August, 2017 had nominated the comapny as Bid Process Coordinator for the
development of Intra-State transmission elements of Jharkhand State through Tariff Based Competitive Bidding route. Further,
Government of Jharkhand vide its letter dated 30 September, 2020, has decided to reinitiate the bidding process and kept on hold the
existing process till further orders. Based on no more development on these projects since past three years, the board of directors of the
company in its 109th meeting dated 20th October 2023 has approved the write off of receivables/ investment pertains to these SPVs
namely Chandil Transmission Limited, Dumka Transmission Limited., Koderma Transmission Limited & Mandar Transmission Limited.
These companies are now in process of strike off approval from the Ministry of Power.

11 There are no foreign currency transactions during the year. Therefore no disclosures are required under Schedule ITI of the Companies Act,

2013.

IV The Company does not have more than 2 layers as specified in sub-rule (2) of Companies (Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017. As

on 31.03.2024, the Company has 23 SPVs, In which it has directly invested and holds 100% of its shares. So Company does not violate the
provision of Section 2(87) of companies Act.

The Company presently operating in a single segment i.e. providing engineering consultancy services and therefore disclosure requirements
of Ind AS 108 is not applicable. The company presently has single geographical segment, as all its project offices are located within the
Country.

VI No funds have been advanced ot loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)

by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries). The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. -

VII During the Financial Year 2023-24, there is no transaction with companies Struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013.

VIII The code on social security 2020 (Code) relating to employee benefit during employment and post employment benefit received

presidential accent in September 2020. The code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the code will
come in to effect has not been notified. The company will assess the impact of the code when it comes in to effect and will record any
related impact in the year the code becomes effective.

IX The company has no material adjustment event after reporting period.
X As per the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 the figures have been rounded off to the nearest of lakh and decimal thereof.

XI Negative figures have been shown in bracket.
XII Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever required.

Summary of material accounting policies 1 to 3
The accompanying notes from 4 to 50 are integral part of the financial statements.
These are the financial statements referred to in our report of even date.
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